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1. INTRODUCTION
This analysis has been conducted as an addition to court-medical analysis of photo-documentation connected to event on “Tuzlan Kapija” from 25 May 1995, conducted by professor Karan Željko. 

This analysis considers the possibilities of origin of injuries of casualties in this event, from point of view of artillery-ballistic interpretation, and it can be considered that with court-medical analysis it forms a complete analysis of origin of injuries on killed persons.

2.  AVAILABLE MATERIAL
During work on this analysis, the following documents were available:

· Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, court-medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of delivered documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014,
· Mile Poparić, Professional expertise of circumstances and earlier determined facts about the case of explosion on “Kapija” square in Tuzla on 25 May 1995, finding and opinion, Belgrade 2014.
· Photo-documentation about casualties from case records,
· Records about examination of dead body from case records,
· Schematic displays of injuries on casualties from case records,
· Video footage about casualties from case records,
· Statements of witnesses from case records.
1. 3. ANALYSIS OF INJURIES OF CASUALTIES
2. ĐEDOVIĆ RAZIJA, daughter of Ekrem, student from Gradačac
On Đedović Razija’s body injuries caused by some objects and injuries caused by shockwave action are noticed.

Injuries from the shockwave are marked with red color, and injuries from some objects are marked with green and purple color, Figure 1.
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	Figure 1 Injuries on the body of Đedović Razija


2.1 Injuries caused by the shockwave are visible on right shin, back part of right thigh and on front-inner side of left thigh. 

Reasons for this claim are multiple, and all of them should be explained.

Right shin was destroyed at approximately half the shin length, which was determined by comparing to the left shin, Figure 2.
Such massive destruction of right shin could have been caused either by shockwave action formed by explosion in immediate proximity, or by action of fragment beam caused by an explosion also at very close proximity.
	[image: image2.jpg]




	Figure 2 Photograph of Đedović Razija’s corpse


Destruction of shin as result of 130mm projectile action must, in this case, be completely excluded, because in that case left shin would also hold a large number of fragment hits because of circular spreading of fragments in relation to projectile axis, and consequences on the rest of the body would be much more severe.

Supporting this claim are also appearances of injuries on right and left thigh. These two injuries were caused by shockwave action which was spreading from back side of Razija Đedović's body, direction “B”, Figure 1. 
Same explosion also destroyed right shin, because Figure 2 clearly shows that front part of shin tissue and skin remained whole. 

Due to this explosion Razija Đedović’s body had to fall on its right side, and this fall caused a closed fracture of right upper arm. If explosion happened on front side, body would fall on its left side. 
Injury to right shin back side, which on Figure 1 is marked with 3х2, was caused by some object.
Injury to right side of stomach- professor Karan has characterized as a shallow tangential injury, which is true because this injury was caused by a tangential hit of some object which flew-in from the left side, and according to photograph from photo-documentation this object hit the right forearm causing a defect with 5x3cm dimensions, Figure 1. 
Defects on middle and stomach left side are most probably caused by action from left side, although possibility that these defects were caused by action from back side from direction “B” cannot be excluded, at which it is possible that the defect on left side is the exit opening.

Injury to front part of left thigh was caused by hit of some object from front side and it does not have any connection with the injury on inner side of the same thigh.

This injury to the front part of left shin and injury labeled by 3х2 on right thigh could in no way be caused by hit from the same direction, which confirms that Đedović Razija was hit from two different directions. 

3. BRGULJAK ELMA, daughter of Hasib, born in 1975, from Gračanica
On the body of this person there are visible expressive traces of soot in left shin area, which points out that she was in vicinity of explosion.

Other than traces of soot, proof that explosion happened in her proximity is also the left shoe- from which a portion of shoe-front was blown-away, which can clearly be seen on Figure 3.
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	Figure 3  Brguljak Elma with clothes on autopsy table


On her body, injuries caused by shockwave action can be noted, as well as numerous injuries by fragments, spread across left lateral side from knee all the way to neck area, Figure 4.
It can be noted that these fragment injuries are almost the same size, which excludes the possibility that these are injuries caused by fragment action from some artillery projectile, because in case of artillery projectile bursting a large number of fragments of different dimensions is formed and it is improbable that one body gets hit at this high quantity only by fragments of approximately the same dimensions.

Injuries caused by shockwave (labeled by red color on Figure 5) and fragments point out that explosion site was half-left in relation to the body, as shown by arrow on Figure 5.
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	Figure 4 Brguljak Elma without clothes on autopsy table


Injuries caused by shockwave show that this person, at the moment of explosion, was most likely in sitting position. That is pointed towards by injuries on chest and on left forearm. These two injuries were caused by the same shockwave, which is concluded based on both injuries being approximately the same width and by them being located at the same height when left arm is leaning on the table. 
On figure 3 and Figure 4 it can be noted that right shin has injuries both on inner and outer side of right shin. Taking into account that explosion site was half-left, Figure 5, then this layout of injuries is possible only in the case that right shin was moved backwards in relation to the left and also turned a little bit to the left, which was possible only if the person mentioned was in sitting position.
If Brguljak Elma was sitting at a table, then she could have been either in front of “Kapija” caffe or in front of “Gulam” caffe.

Injury to the right thigh, Figure 5, is hardly noticeable on Figure 4 and it can hardly be related to the direction of origination of other injuries, so possibility that this person was hit from two different directions cannot be excluded.
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	Figure 5 Schematic display of Brguljak Elma’s injuries
Red color labels injuries caused by shockwave, and red arrow shows approximate direction in which explosion was


Brguljak Elma was killed by explosion which was in her immediate proximity, at which she suffered injuries both from shockwave and from fragments. Traces of fragment injuries show that she was not hit by fragments of artillery projectile.  

At the moment of her demise, she was most probably sitting at a table, and it is possible that it was in front of “Kapija” caffe or in front of “Gulam” caffe. Injury to outer side of right thigh cannot with certainty be linked with the explosion which caused other injuries.
4. HASANOVIĆ SENAD, son of Meša 
Hasanović Senad, at the moment of his demise, was at about 1.5m away from center of explosion next to “Golf 1” car.
His injuries do not match the injuries caused by explosion of 3.6kg of explosive at that range. It was experimentally shown that body of a person who is about 1.5m away from explosion of 130mm projectile containing 3.6kg of TNT explosive would sustain a high level of destruction
.
5. RAMIĆ FAHRUDIN, son of Miralem, born in 1961, geography professor from Tuzla
Ramić Fahrudin was killed in front of “Gulam” caffe, at about 18m away from explosion site in front of “Golf 1” car, Figure 6.
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	Figure 6 Bodies of Ramić Fahrudin and Stojičić Jelena in front of “Gulam” caffe


As Figure 6 shows, body of Ramić Fahrudin is on his back, while face is towards the explosion site next to “Golf 1” car, which is unusual considering that he suffered an injury of 7х3cm dimensions on his back, so it would be expected that he fell on his stomach if he sustained injury from explosion site direction in front of “Golf 1” car. However there was a possibility that body was turned during evacuation, so final conclusion in which position was Ramić Fahrudin’s body at the moment when he was hit- cannot be given.

Although injury to his back was the only injury that was noted during corpse examination, on video footage two more details can be seen, which give base to doubt that Ramić Fahrudin’s body had more injuries.
In the area of left side of neck there is skin damage which could have been caused by hit of some object, Figure 7, and this detail was not commented on even by professor Karan. Other than this, on left thigh, on jeans, a larger blood stain can be seen, Figure 8. Considering that left body side footage was nowhere shown, it is not possible to determine if this stain was caused by some injury to Ramić Fahrudin’s body or is it stain caused by some other victim’s blood during transport.
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	Figure 7 Trace on Ramić Fahrudin’s neck



	[image: image8.jpg]




	Figure 8 Blood trace on Ramić Fahrudin’ s jeans



Based on available documentation, it cannot be determined how Ramić Fahrudin died, but also thesis about him being hit from two different directions cannot be dismissed with certainty.
6. MARINOVIĆ PERA, daughter of Franjo, born in 1958, from Tuzla
Marinović Pera was in front of B&H Lottery premises at the moment of the incident
, at a distance of 18m to 22m from explosion site in front of “Golf 1” car, Figure 9.
Marinović Pera sustained injuries on left side from waist down, which means that she was turned left side towards the Center of Explosion. It is not known how she was standing in relation to explosion site at “Golf 1” car in front of “NIK” store.
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	Figure 9 Marinović Pera’s position at the moment of explosion


It was experimentally proven that, at a place where Marinović Pera was located, 130mm projectile which explodes in front of “Golf 1” car does not cause any injuries to people who are located on the area where Marinović Pera was.
 It means that on this area only some incidental fragment hit is possible. 
Taking into account that Marinović Pera was hit by 3 fragments and that in her immediate proximity at least 5 more persons were injured 3 out of which died, then possibility that Marinović Pera was hit due to explosion of 130mm projectile in front of “Golf 1” car is completely excluded. Taking into account the number of casualties and injured people at this location, even the possibility that she was incidentally hit is excluded.
7. MUSTAČEVIĆ ŠABAN, son of Avdo, born in 1966, from Tuzla
According to witness’ statement, Mustačević Šaban was at about 1m away from back side of “Golf 1” car
.
Mustačević Šaban sustained injuries from shins to his head, and the most interesting thing in this case is that there are traces of soot on his pants in the area of right shin and in the area of left side of his face. Such soot traces layout is possible only in the case that explosion was at relatively short distance on his right side, while upper body part was turned to the right and bent downwards.
However, in such body position injury to his knee area does not fit in, because it is obvious that injury labeled by red circle and arrow “A” on Figure 10 could have been caused only by fragment hit to his left side. Other than this, for such body position injuries to his right side of face also do not fit in. According to body position they must have been on left side.
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	Figure 10 Mustačević Šaban's body
Arrow “А” labels direction from which left leg was hit
Arrow “В” labels direction from which right side of skull was hit
Sketch in upper right corner is a schematic display of injuries to his head. Red surface is skull defect with dimensions 6cm x 4cm


All of this shows that body was not in position according to abovementioned assumption, but soot traces on leg and face were made from two different sources. 
Injuries to his face, right thigh and right lateral side of chest in no way fit in with the direction of origination of injury to his left leg in knee area, which shows that this person was hit from two different directions.

If Mustačević Šaban was at a distance of about 1m away from back part of Golf, as witness claims, then it is quite certain that his injuries were not caused by 130mm projectile explosion.

This is confirmed by experiment results. Experiments
 have shown that 130mm projectile fragments pass to back part of “Golf 1” only up to height below back bumper, and persons who are near car can sustain injuries up to their knees, and in no way in upper body part and head, as was the case with Mustačević Šaban, and that the model which was behind car does not hold any traces of soot, Figure 11.
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	Figure 11 Damage to back part of “Golf 1” car caused by 130mm projectile explosion in front of front part of the car – left, and damage to human figure model which was behind “Golf 1”


Based on analysis of available documentation and experimental results, with high level of  certainty can be claimed that Mustačević Šaban was not killed by 130mm projectile explosion and that he was hit by fragments from two different directions and that both explosions were in his vicinity.

8. SARAJLIĆ EDHEM, son of Enver, born in 1975, from Tuzla
Injuries to Sarajlić Edhem’s body are very poorly described and there is not enough data based on which could be conducted a more detailed analysis from the standpoint of injuries cause and origin. However, the dominant injury on left thigh allows for a partial analysis.

Such a massive, wide-open injury is characteristic for blast-injuries, which can most obviously be seen by comparing with a similar injury caused by some terroristic attack.
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	Figure 12 Blast injuries to Sarajlić Edhem- up, and example of a similar blast-injury - down


In order for such a blast-injury to be caused by a 130mm projectile, then this person would have to be at a distance of up to 5m away from center of explosion, but in that case there would be a very high number of fragment hits across his body, which is not noticeable on this body nor is mentioned in Record of examination or in schematic display.
Based on that it is determined that Sarajlić Edhem was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion.

9. BEGANOVIĆ ADNAN, son of Mirsad, born in 1979, from Tuzla
In available documentation, there is no data about the location of this person at the instant of the explosion. 
Professor Karan noted that localization of injuries points out to a possibility of injuring from both front and back side, and also from left and right side of the body.

Based on position and dimensions of wounds, with great certainty it can be claimed that this person was hit also from the left side, direction “A”, and from right side of the body, direction “B”, Figure 13.
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	Слика 13  Бочни погоци на телу Бегановић Аднана


Injuries to head vertex, left hand, middle of right buttocks
 to Beganović Adnan can be seen on schematic display on Figure 14.
When one looks at injuries on back part of Beganović Adnan’s body, a question is asked: is the skin defect, on middle of right buttock, connected to defect on left hip, Figure 13? If these two defects are connected by perforating channel, then previous conclusion is true only under condition that left hip defect is entry wound, while right buttock defect is exit wound. 

Since there isn’t any data about this, then we shall do an analysis from the standpoint of possibility of body injury origination in relation to Center of Explosion.
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	Figure 14 Injuries to backside of Beganović Adnan’s body


When looked upon the schematic display of head injuries, Figure 13, it can be noticed that injuries are both on left and right side a little below the ear, i.e. that perforating channel is at very low angle. I.e. almost horizontal. 
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	Figure 15 Fragments directions


If allegation from Record of examination is true, defect on right buttock is significantly below wound on left hip, and if these wounds are connected by perforating channel then this perforating channel is at significantly higher angle in relation to horizon than angle of perforating channel on head. 

In order to check that possibility more easily, directions of fragments arrival have been applied on Figure 15, from some assumed Center of Explosion, on right buttock and to right cranial side. In this analysis it is not important at which distance Center of Explosion was. As can be seen, angle of perforating channel on the head in relation to horizon is always higher than the angle of perforating channel which connects right buttock part and left hip, out of which is concluded that injuries to the head and right buttock were not caused by the same explosion. It points out that previous conclusion about injuries to hip and head being caused by hits from different directions, Figure 14, is true.
Injury to right buttock was caused, most probably, in the same manner as injury to head vertex area, Figure 15, by explosion behind back, but it is possible that two explosions were on the right side, one of which caused head injury while other caused injury of right buttock to the hip.

According to appearance of injury on the chest, it is obvious that it was caused by fragment hit at a high angle in relation to body, which points out that it was caused by explosion in front of Beganović Adnan. 

It can be claimed with high level of certainty that Beganović Adnan was killed by fragments formed from four individual explosions from four directions, or possibly four explosions from three directions.
10. BAKALOVIĆ ASMIR, son of Ferhat, born in 1975, from Tuzla
In submitted Records there are no data about this person’s whereabouts at the moment of the explosion.
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	Figure 16 Injuries to front and back side of Bakalović Asmir’s body


On this person’s body there were two wounds on the back and one wound on the chest, Figure 16, and one larger tangential wound on right hip, Figure 17.
Professor Karan
 allowed the possibility that one of the wounds on his back was connected with chest wound.
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	Figure 17 Injury to Bakalović Asmir’s right hip



We will consider if such assumption fits in possible fragments trajectories. On this person’s back there are two wounds. And on the chest there is one wound. If we apply assumption that one of back wounds is linked to chest wound, it would mean that this person was facing the explosion and that one fragment perforated the body, while other one remained inside. 

And wound shape suggests that in this case this person was hit in back, because entry wound on back is much smaller that exit wound on chest. This is only an assumption and considering that chest wound looks also as a tangential wound, Figure 18, it cannot be claimed with certainty that back injuries are linked with chest injury. On video-footage an injury on right hip can be noticed, and it can also be noticed that axis of the wound is directed from down towards up, while the Record of examination states that the defect is placed horizontally,
 but on the schematic display it is drawn-in approximately as can be seen on video-footage, Figure 19. Based on position and shape of hip wound, it is obvious that it was caused by some fragment which arrived from front. Since there are also wounds on the back which could not have been caused by fragment arrival from front, then it is obvious that this person was hit from both front and back side. Such conclusion cannot be affected if one back wound is connected by channel with chest wound.
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	Figure 18 Injury to Bakalović Asmir’s chest
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	Figure 19 Bakalović Asmir – sketch of hip wound


Based on analysis of possible fragment trajectories, which caused wound on Bakalović Asmir’s body, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Bakalović Asmir was hit from two directions, from front and back side of body.

11. ĐUŠIĆ SUZANA, daughter of Veselin, born in 1981, in Tuzla
In submitted Records there are no data about this person’s whereabouts at the moment of explosion.

In available photo-documentation it is relatively hard to notice character of this person’s injuries. 
On video-footage of the corpse
 it is noticed, very clearly, that this person sustained very large blast-injury in the area of right hip, Figure 20.
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	Figure 20 Đušić Suzana’s body, with massive right hip injury


Other than this injury, several other injuries on frontal body part were noted.
 There are traces of soot on clothes and body.

This person was facing the explosion site with her right lateral side and was at a short distance from the explosion site.  
In order to sustain such injuries by a 130mm projectile explosion at “Golf 1” car, she would have to be located less than 5m from Center of Explosion, but in such a case she would have to sustain many injuries from projectile fragments. Since her body holds one to two injuries by fragments, it is concluded that she was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion.

Based on character and number of injuries, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Đušić Suzana was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion.
12. ĆERIMOVIĆ ALMASA, born in 1975, from Gradačac
In delivered Records there are no data about this person’s whereabouts at the moment of explosion.

In enclosed photo-documentation it is clear that head is completely devastated and it cannot be claimed with certainty what is the cause of head devastation
, and therefore possibility of head devastation due to explosion will not be considered.
In photo-documentation, Figure 21, is clearly visible that this person sustained multiple wounds or lacerations as stated in schematic display, Figure 22, in area of both shins.

It is clear that injuries on shin were caused by explosion from left side of the body and that this person was moving at the moment of the explosion. 

She could sustain such injuries if she was behind back part of “Golf 1” car, Figure 11, but behind “Golf 1” car there were other persons who remained almost unharmed. Other possibility is that she was in front of “Kapija” caffe garden, because her injuries are very similar to injuries of Hurić Edin
, who was sitting in this caffe’s garden.
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	Figure 21 Ćerimović Almasa’s body


Injuries at shins area can in no way be linked to injury on right thigh with 8x11cm diameter, Figure 23, and it is obvious that these injuries were caused from two different directions.
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	Figure 22 Schematic display of injuries to front and back side of Ćerimović Almasa’s body
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	Figure 22 Injury to Ćerimović Almasa’s right thigh


Based on direction of injuries origin- on shin and right thigh, it can be claimed with high level of certainty that Ćerimović Almasa was hit from two different directions and that she was most likely located in front of “Kapija” caffe garden.
13. ĐAPO SAMIR, son of Zejnil, born in 1975 in Tuzla
According to witness statement, Đapo Samir was located at the corner of building containing “Leonardo” caffe,
 Figure 23.
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	Figure 23 Place where Đapo Samir and Mehmedović Edin were located 


According to appearance and position of wounds which are visible on video-footage
, Center of Explosion which killed this person was to his right. Injury on the foot points out that left leg was lifted from the ground- it is possible that it was leaning on some object, Figure 24.
If injuries are analyzed with this assumption about Center of Explosion position, then it could be accepted that it is possible that all registered injuries and injury to the right thigh which wasn’t registered, Figure 25, were caused by that explosion, with the exception of injuries to the left shin and in left hip area. On schematic display it is even stated that defect in right hip area is of 0.8cm diameter and that it goes in-depth, which means it was caused by a fragment arriving from left side.

If case is analyzed with Center of Explosion being on the left side, then defect on right thigh would not be possible from that explosion, Figure 25.
Defect on skull scalp could have been caused in several ways and there is not enough data for a reliable analysis.
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	Figure 24 Schematic display of noted injuries to Đapo Amir, without display of injuries to scalp


	[image: image28.jpg]




	Figure 25 Wound on Đapo Amir’s right thigh (circled by red circle)


Based on analysis of possible directions of fragment arrival, with high level of certainty it is concluded that Đapo Amir was hit from two different directions, i.e. from two different explosions.

14. ĐUZEL AMIR, son of Sakib, born in 1968, from Tuzla
According to witness’ statement Đuzel Amir was located on a plateau in front of “Leonardo” caffe,
 Figure 26, at about 15m from “NIK” store shopwindow.
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	Figure 26 Approximate place where Đuzel Amir was


Based on appearance and position of injuries on shin and left thigh, Figure 27, it is obvious that these injuries were caused by shockwave, and not by fragments. This person was moving at the moment of death, and right leg was stepping towards explosion site, which was most probably 3 to 4m away. In any case, possibility that these injuries were caused as a consequence of a 130mm projectile explosion in front of “NIK” store shopwindow is absolutely excluded.
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	Figure 27 Đuzel Amir’s body


Based on character and shape of injuries, with high level of certainty is concluded that Đuzel Amir was not killed by consequences of 130mm projectile explosion, but from an explosion on plateau in front of “Leonardo” caffe.
14.  KURTALIĆ VESNA, daughter of Izet, born in 1979, from Tuzla
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	Figure 27 Place where Kurtalić Vesna was located


According to witness’ statement Kurtalić Vesna was located at about 2 to 3 meters away from killed Mujić Samir
, Figure 27, according to estimation 5m to 7m from explosion site in front of “Golf 1” car.

According to photo-documentation and schematic display of injuries on Kurtalić Vesna’s body, three different types of injuries can be noted and also expressed traces of soot on abdominal wall and head, Figure 28.
Presence of such high quantity of soot points out that she was in immediate proximity of the explosion. 
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	Figure 28 Schematic display of Kurtalić Vesna’s injuries


Injuries which are described as destruction were caused by explosion, Figure 28 and Figure 29 and Figure 30, and such low destruction was caused by explosion which was very close to this person.
Penetrating injuries were caused by fragments which arrived from front right side, which is concluded by wounds appearance and by back side of leg having fewer injuries than front side, Figure 30.

On right side in upper body half, injuries which are described as “surface scratches” stand out. When their position is compared in relation to position and direction of large injuries origin on lower extremities, one comes to a conclusion that they could not have been caused by the same explosion. Other than non-matching direction of injuries origin on lower extremities and upper body part, their grouping by height points out that they were not caused by explosion of some projectile. Namely, small surface scratches could have been caused by small fragments of projectile or by small pebbles which were possibly on the road and which and which were thrown away by explosion, but in both cases they would have to be distributed across whole body or from feet and up to some height which depends on person’s distance from projectile explosion.
But in any case they would have to be on the same side, which is not the case with this person.
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	Figure 29 Injuries caused by explosion action


And penetrating wounds on lower extremities deserve special attention. It is noted that these injuries are large and that they are, by size, very uniform, which is not characteristic of artillery projectile fragmentation. With artillery projectile, fragments of different size and dimensions are formed, and therefore on the body of person who is a casualty of artillery projectile fragments- there are injuries different by shape and dimensions. 
Leaving aside this ascertainment, we shall check if these injuries match the injuries which would have been caused by an explosion which would happen in front of “Golf 1” car.

It was determined that Hasanović Senad and Alispahić Admir were at about 2m away from the Center of Explosion.
 Injuries which they sustained during that are visible on Figure 31.
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	Figure 30 Kurtalić Vesna’s body, red circles mark destructions caused by shockwave
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	Figure 31 Bodies of Alispahić Admir (up) and Hasanović Senad (down) 


When wounds of Hasanović Senad and Alispahić Admir are compared to Kurtalić Vesna’s injuries on her lower extremities, it is obvious that her injuries were not caused by the same explosion which killed two of them.

Kurtalić Vesna’s injuries as well as characteristic soot can be compared to injuries of following victims:

· 34. Okanović Indira,

· 35. Bošnjaković Ilvana,

· 38. Bojkić Damir,

· 42. Bučuk Lejla,
· 51. Alagić Elvis,

· 52. Atiković Lejla
All these victims have on their bodies similar soot traces and very similar injuries on lower extremities and all these injuries are spread at height up to 1m.
Based on all these analyses, with high level of certainty it is concluded that Kurtalić Vesna was not killed by explosion in front of “Golf 1” car.
15. MEMIĆ EDISA, daughter of Osman, born in 1976, from Tuzla
In submitted documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts in relation to Center of Explosion.
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	Figure 32 Schematic display of Memić Edisa’s injuries from front and back side of the body


From submitted schematic display of injuries, it is concluded that this person could sustain most of her injuries if she was turned with her back half-right in relation to explosion site, Figure 32, and that head was turned maximum to the right.
But in this position of body in relation to explosion site, injuries on left thigh could in no way be caused, Figure 33 (circled by red line). These injuries could have been caused by the same Center of Explosion as others, but in that case those would be tangential injuries, and not injuries which go in-depth as stated on schematic display.
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	Figure 33 Schematic display of Memić Edisa’s injuries on lateral body sides


On lower left side of stomach there is an injury with 2cm diameter, Figure 33, which also goes in-depth. There is a possibility that it is an exit wound of some wound on the back, but it cannot be excluded as a wound which was caused by a frontal hit, especially if taken into consideration that there is a wound on her forehead which was more likely caused by a frontal hit rather than back hit, and injuries on the shoulder according to schematic display cannot be excluded as wounds caused by frontal hit.
On this person’s face, beneath lower lip, there is a wound which was not described in detail, Figure 34, which is of completely circular shape and which could only be caused by a frontal hit. On first sight it could be claimed that it could be some mole, but photograph of this person on the death certificate shows that she had no mole, Figure 35.
Based on all these analyses it is concluded that Memić Edisa was hit from back side, front and left side.
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	Figure 34 Injury to Memić Edisa’s face which was not explained anywhere
	Figure 35 Мемић Еdisa’s photograph from her death certificate, where no mole can be seen


Injuries on this person’s right lateral side deserve special attention, Figure 33, down right and Figure 36. These wounds are of circular shape and with dimensions 2х2cm and 3х3cm. Professor Karan does not exclude the possibility that those are penetrating wounds and that they are mutually connected by channels. Wounds shape and wounds dimensions, however, confirm the comment on schematic display that wounds continue in-depth, i.e. that those are separate wounds.

	[image: image41.jpg]




	Figure 36 Memić Edisa’s body


Circular-shaped wounds as these cannot be considered as wounds caused by artillery projectile fragments. It is true that artillery projectile can sometimes cause wound which has approximately circular shape, but it is unbelievable for multiple circular injuries to be concentrated on small area, and at that for dimensions to be the same. Shape of these wounds and their concentration on small area point out that they were not caused by artillery projectile fragments, but from some other explosive device.
By comparing appearance of these wounds and other visible wounds on this person’s body, a large difference in wounds shape is noticed.

Based on all these analyses, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Memić Edisa was hit from at least two different directions and by fragments of two different explosive devices.
16. ČAJIĆ SANJA, daughter of Mijo, born in 1977, from Tuzla
According to case records Čajić Sanja was in Bučuk Lejla’s company.
 It is not known where exactly Bučuk Lejla was, but according to injuries she was probably close to “NIK” store corner next to Dr. Mustafe Mujbegovića Street.
Čajić Sanja’s injuries are most expressed on legs, Figure 37, and the spread up to about 1m height. If assumed that injuries were caused by 130mm projectile explosion it would mean that this person was at a a distance of 1 to 2m away from Center of Explosion. In that case destruction of the body would be very high which did not happen in this case, and that means that injuries were not caused by a 130mm projectile explosion.
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	Figure 37 Schematic display of Čajić Sanja’s injuries


On this person’s body significant traces of soot are visible,
 and in the area of chest and head many lacerations were noted, which are also visible on photograph of body, Figure 38.
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	Figure 38 Čajić Sanja’s body


In leg area there are visible traces which also look like lacerations on chest and head. These lacerations and other injuries on legs are, by shape and dimensions, very different and it is obvious that they do not originate from the same explosion. 
Lacerations on chest and head look like injuries on Bučuk Lejla’s left side.

According to lacerations position and based on difference in height, it is concluded that Čajić Sanja was most probably at about 1m away from Bučuk Lejla . 

Based on all these analyses, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Čajić Sanja was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion.

17. REKIĆ NEDIM, son of Kemal, born in 1957, from Tuzla
According to witness’ statement Rekić Nedim was killed in front of “Leonardo” caffe. 
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	Figure 39 Position where was located


Most injuries clearly point out that this person sustained those injuries from left side, Figure 40. 
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	Figure 40 Schematic display of Rekić Nedim's injuries


On this person’s right lateral side there is one wound with 5х3cm size, which could in no way be caused by fragment which arrived from left side, Figure 40 and Figure 41. This wound could only be formed by a fragment which arrived from right lateral side, which tells that Rekić Nedim was hit from two different directions from two different explosions.
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	Figure 41 Wound to right lateral side of Rekić Nedim's body


Based on all these analyses, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Rekić Nedim was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion, but from consequences of two different explosions one of which was on his left side, and one on his right side.

18. VUKOVIĆ MUSTAFA, son of Rizah, born in 1972
Vuković Mustafa was located at the corner of a building containing boutique and “Leonardo” caffe,
 Figure 42, which is about 10 to 11m away from explosion site at “Golf 1” car in front of “NIK” store.
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	Figure 42 Place where Vuković Mustafa was located


According to Malohodžić Nedim’s statement, Vuković Mustafa was facing towards “NIK” store.

This person sustained a high number of fragments injuries on front side of body, Figure 43, which points out that he was facing the explosion.

According to schematic display, Figure 43, on Vuković Mustafa's body there are over 18 fragments' injuries and also traumatic amputation of right foot and destruction of right and left shin, Figure 44.
According to experimental results, number of fragment hits is higher than possible number of hits in case of 130mm projectile explosion in front of “Golf 1” car, and considering distance from explosion site in front of “Golf 1” car- possibility that traumatic amputation of right foot and destruction of left and right shin was caused by explosion in front of “Golf 1” car is excluded.

	[image: image49.jpg]| lozii »{;/Jg, Pl
td =177





	Figure 43 Schematic display of Vuković Mustafa's injuries
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	Figure 44 Vuković Mustafa's body


Based on all these analyses, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Vuković Mustafa was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion.

19 . HUJDUROVIĆ ADNAN, son of Nijaz, born in 1977, from Tuzla
Hujdurović Adnan was located next to “Zastava 101” car
, at about 9 to 10m away from explosion site in front of “Golf 1” car, Figure 45.
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	Figure 45 Place where Hujdurović Adnan was located


Although injuries are not described in most-detailed manner, a systematization of this person’s injuries is possible. Injuries to his back and left leg side could not have been caused by the same explosion, Figure 46.
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	Figure 46 Schematic display of Hujdurović Adnan’s injuries. Red lines mark injuries on the right side which cannot be linked with injuries on left side


Appearance of left side of chest also points towards such conclusion, on which blood traces can be noticed- which were probably caused by some smaller injuries, Figure 47 .
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	Figure 47 Hujdurović Adnan’s body


Injury to the right thigh with 8x5cm dimensions and 5cm depth is of such shape that it is obvious that it was caused by a fragment which arrived frontally or a little to half-right in relation to this person’s body, Figure 48.
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	Figure 48 Injury to Hujdurović Adnan’s right thigh with 8х5cm dimensions and 5cm depth


Injuries on the back, according to schematic display, remind very much on smaller injuries to bodies of Bučuk Lejla and Čajić Sanja
, which were most likely killed nearby the place where Hujdurović Adnan was located, Figure 45.

Based on all these analyses, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Hujdurović Adnan was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion, but that he was killed from consequences of at least two explosions, one of which was on his left, and other on his right side.

20. AHMETAŠEVIĆ EDINA, daughter of Arif, born in 1974, from Tuzla
In submitted documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts in relation to the Center of Explosion.

According to schematic display of Ahmetašević Edina's injuries, she sustained only three fragment hits, Figure 49. According to this person’s corpse photograph- she has another injury on her right shoulder, Figure 50.
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	Figure 49 Schematic display of Ahmetašević Edina's injuries
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	Figure 50 Ahmetašević Edina's body


If assumption is introduced, that in front of “Golf 1” car a 130mm projectile exploded, then based on number of fragment hits and based on their position- this person had to be at least 10 to 15m away from Center of Explosion. 

Except fragment injuries on this person’s body are also present two large injuries caused by shockwave, which could in no way be caused by projectile explosion in front of “Golf 1” car, which proves that this person was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion.
Position and shape of wounds around left leg ankle and on left thigh point out that the explosion was in front of this person, so fragment injuries on front part of body could be caused by that explosion, but injuries to her back could not be caused by that explosion. According to schematic display, chest wound is higher than back wound, and those wounds in case of explosion on frontal side could not have been connected, because fragment flies from down towards up. 

Back wound is larger than chest wound, which means that chest wound was not an exit wound from the wound to the back, which definitely confirms that wounds to the chest and back were caused by two different explosions.
According to positions of wounds caused by the shockwave, it is very likely that this person was sitting at the moment of the explosion.

Based on all these analyses, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Ahmetašević Edina was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion, but that she was killed from consequences of at least two explosions, one of which was on her front, and other behind her back.

21. MEHINOVIĆ AMIRA, daughter of Nasrudin, born in 1974, from Tuzla
In submitted documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts in relation to the Center of Explosion.

According to schematic display Mehinović Amira sustained injuries from explosion which was on her left side.

If assumption is introduced that a 130mm projectile exploded in front of “Golf 1” car, then based on number of fragment injuries and based on their position, this person had to have been at least 10 to 15m away from Center of Explosion. 

On the photograph of her corpse, Figure 51, it is noted that in area of front side of her knees and shins as well as in area of face and neck there are layers of soot
, which excludes the possibility that this person was killed by a 130mm projectile explosion.

Such a conclusion is confirmed by experimental results, which show that at explosion of a 130mm projectile there are no traces of soot.
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	Figure 51 Mehinović Amira's body with clearly visible soot traces on her legs


Based on all these analyses, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Mehinović Amira was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion. 

22. KANTOR FRANC, son of Mihalj, born in 1971, from Tuzla
In submitted documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts in relation to Center of Explosion.

According to schematic display Kantor Franc sustained injuries from an explosion which was on his left side, Figure 52.
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	Figure 52 Schematic display of Kantor Franc’s injuries. Red arrows label direction in which explosion happened


On schematic display, a trace can be noted from a series of fragment hits which are distributed across almost straight line, which suggests that they were caused by an explosion which was in immediate proximity.
When a straight line is applied- in section with horizontal line is given the approximate place from where these fragments arrived, i.e. approximate explosion site is gained, Figure 53.

Distance from right lateral side of body to explosion site is labeled by blue line, which is marked by letter “a”. When we put this line in vertical plane, it can be noticed that line reaches approximately to loin of body. Considering that this person’s height was 183cm, based on this person’s height it is estimated that length of the line “a” is about 120cm. 
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	Figure 53 Graphical determination of explosion site based on wound on his back


Taking into account that this is a schematic display and that exact coordinates of injuries are not given, it is estimated that real explosion distance to the left lateral side was 1m to 1.5m, which excludes any possibility that he was killed by a 130mm projectile explosion.
Based on all these analyses, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Kantor Franc was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion. 

23. SLIJEPČEVIĆ ASIM, son of Izet, born in 1975, from Tuzla
Slijepčević Asim was located at boutique entrance,
 Figure 54.
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	Figure 54 Place where Slijepčević Asim was located


Based on schematic display of injuries, Figure 55, it is concluded that this person was hit from at least two sides and front and back side, and there is a possibility that he was hit also from the left side, which cannot be confirmed with certainty based on available data.
On Figure 55- red circles mark wounds which were caused by hits from back side. 

Purple circles with dotted lines mark the wounds which were caused by hits from front side.
Green circles mark the wounds for which the direction from which they were caused cannot be confirmed with certainty.

On Figure 55 – upper right, on this person’s shoulder a perforating wound is noted, which is marked as a wound caused by front side hit. This conclusion is achieved based on dimensions of entry and exit wound. Entry wound is smaller and in this case it equals 2cm x 2cm, and exit wound is larger and it equals 3cm x 2cm. Position of right perforating channel of the wound shows that the arm was moved backwards, and it is possible that upper body part was moved slightly bent forward.

Wound on right shin is also a perforating wound
 and it was caused by a hit from the back, which is clearly noted by size of entry and exit wound. Entry wound is at back side of shin and its dimensions are 3cm x 3cm, and on front side of the shin is the exit wound with 7cm x 5cm dimensions.
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	Figure 56 Injury to  Slijepčević Asim’s chest
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	Figure 55 Schematic display of  Slijepčević Asim’s injuries


Perforating penis with damage to scrotum
 could have been caused only by hit from front side.

Special attention should be paid to a large injury on his chest, Figure 56, in injury description it is described as defect caused by fragment which hit right shoulder and exit in chest area.

Such conclusion is incorrect, because such a wound could not have been formed as an exit wound from a fragment. Fact that a fragment which hit right shoulder exit on the chest on the area of this wound is not denied, but such a skin defect was caused by a shockwave which arrived from front side, which points out that one explosion were very close to this person.

On photograph of corpse in clothes, it is noticed that there is a smaller circular wound on right side of neck, which is not described anywhere and for which it is hard to determine the direction from which it was caused from the photograph, but the possibility that it was caused by a hit from the right side cannot be excluded.
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	Figure 57 Neck wound on Slijepčević Asim which was not registered anywhere


Based on all these analyses, it is concluded with a high level of certainty that Slijepčević Asim was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion, but that he was killed by consequences of at least two explosions, one of which was on his front, and other behind his back. Possibility that he was hit from both lateral sides cannot be excluded.

24. KALESIĆ SANDRO, son of Dino, born in 1992, in Tuzla
Kalesić Sandro was sitting at a table in front of “Gulam caffe”
, Figure 58.
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	Figure 58 Approximate location where Kalesić Sandro was


According to his father’s statement, he was on a chair next to his father, and father was facing “NIK” store.

During that father sustained injuries on his left lateral side,
 and Sandro was hit by one fragment in his chest.

According to Kalesić Dino’s testimony, the only possible positions of him and his son Sandro were the positions given in Figure 59.
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	Figure 59 Kalesić Sandro’s and his father Dino’s position


If taken into account that Sandro was hit in chest, and his father Dino in left lateral side of body, then it is obvious that they were not hit by explosion in front of “NIK“ store, but from “Gulam“ caffe direction, i.e. from direction of Komision which was immediately next to “Gulam” caffe.
We remind that the police determined damage within the Komision, the origin of which cannot be linked to the explosion in front of “NIK” store.

Kalesić Sandro was fatally wounded from one fragment hit to the chest. External examination determined a defect with dimensions 0.8cm x 1cm. Computer check based on photograph of the body, next to which a ruler is, it was determined that the size of the wound on Kalesić Sandro's chest was ∅5.5mm. 

We remind that the mine of directional action MRUD holds balls with 5.5mm diameter. It is the reason why Kalesić Sandro's death case should be additionally investigated.
Based on all these analyses, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Kalesić Sandro was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion, but instead that he was killed by consequences of explosion which was at his front side- in direction of “Gulam” caffe facade.

25. HODŽIĆ NEDIM, son of Izet, born in 1964, from Tuzla
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	Figure 60 Location where  Hodžić Nedim was located


According to data available in submitted documentation, this person was located in front of “Samoizbor” store closer to “NIK” store, near the table where drinks were sold,
 which is 8m to 9m away from explosion site in front of “NIK” store.
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	Figure 61 Schematic display of Hodžić Nedim’s injuries


According to schematic display of injuries, Figure 61, Hodžić Nedim sustained 13 injuries.

Injuries which Hodžić Nedim sustained are in discrepancy with experimental results achieved by bursting of 130mm projectile in subject conditions.

Experimentally, only in rare cases the number of hits as sustained by Hodžić Nedim is achieved, but also size of injuries is far smaller then the ones sustained by Hodžić Nedim, which points out that he was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion.

According to schematic display of injuries and photographs of the corpse, Figure 62, it is concluded that explosion site was behind Hodžić Nedim's back, from a direction which is half-left in relation to his body. 
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	Figure 62 Hodžić Nedim’s body


Within this direction of injuries origin do not fit injuries on front side of left shoulder, which points out that Hodžić Nedim was hit from two different directions and by two different explosions.

Based on all these analyses, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Hodžić Nedim was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion, but that he was killed by consequences of two explosions.

26. BORIĆ INDIRA, daughter of Fejzić Kadrija, born in 1958, from Tuzla
Borić Indira was located in front of Loto premises,
 Figure 63, which is at a distance of between 18m and 21m away from explosion site in front of “NIK” store.
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	Figure 63 Place where Borić Indira was


According to schematic display of injuries, Figure 64, Borić Indira sustained 3 wounds in lower extremities area. 
It was experimentally proven that on the area of “Kapija” square where Borić Indira was, fragments formed by a 130mm projectile explosion in front of “NIK” store do not hit people in that zone.

Of course, an incidental hit in that zone can happen, but it can never happen that one person gets hit by multiple fragments. When taken into account that there were more injured and fatally wounded people on this area, then possibility that Borić Indira was killed by a 130mm projectile explosion in front of “NIK” store is absolutely excluded.

When possibilities of origin of wounds sustained by Borić Indira are analyzed, it is noticed that the large wound on outer side of left thigh and wound on inner side of right thigh were caused from the same direction, Figure 65, while the wound on inner side of left thigh, Figure 64 (circled by red circle), was caused by a hit from opposite direction, which means that Borić Indira was hit from two different directions and by fragments formed by two different explosions. 
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	Figure 64 Schematic display of Borić Indira's injuries
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	Figure 65 Borić Indira's body


Based on all these analyses, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Borić Indira was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion, but that she was killed by fragments which arrived from two opposite directions and formed by two different explosions.

27. MEHANOVIĆ SULEJMAN, son of Zahid, born in 1967, from Tuzla
Mehanović Sulejman was located at boutique entrance
, Figure 66.
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	Figure 66 Place where Mehanović Sulejman was


Case of Mehanović Sulejman was analyzed in detail, and that analysis determined that he was hit from three different directions. 

During this analysis schematic display of Mehanović Sulejman's injuries was not used, so the direction of fragment which hit left leg knee was wrongly determined, because schematic display states that it is a perforating wound the entrance of which is at back side of left leg,
 which basically does not change the conclusion about three directions from which Mehanović Sulejman was hit.

Based n detail analysis it is concluded that Mehanović Sulejman was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion, but that he was killed by fragments which arrived from three different directions.
28. KURBAŠIĆ DAMIR, son of Sadik, born in 1975, from Tuzla
Kurbašić Damir was at boutique entrance
, Figure 67. He was in company of fatally injured Mehanović Sulejman and Hrustanović Hasan
.
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	Figure 66 Place where  Kurbašić Damir was
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	Figure 67 Partial schematic display of  Kurbašić Damir’s injuries


In injuries description numerous injuries are stated, with dimensions 5cm x 7cm in area of right outer side of body.
 Large number of injuries with same dimensions leads to a doubt the possibility of these injuries being caused by artillery projectile, because artillery projectile fragments are very different by dimensions and shape, and such concentration of fragments of approximately same size is unlikely. In this case injuries are of approximately the same size and shape which can be seen on photographs extracted from video-footage.

Available schematic display of injuries is not complete, Figure 67, and it does not show that right upper arm holds a perforating wound which is very important in determining approximate direction from which Kurbašić Damir was hit.
Schematic display also does not show one wound on chest, which is not visible on photograph from photo-documentation, because a note with data is placed over it, but it can be seen on video-footage of the corpse, Figure 68.
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	Figure 68 Hit in area of left collar-bone which is not visible on photograph from photo-documentation, but is visible on video-footage of the corpse- right


On photograph from photo-documentation at least one wound on left lateral side of the body can be seen, which is not registered on schematic display, Figure 69 and Figure 70.
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	Figure 69 Kurbašić Damir’s body. Red circles mark wounds on right knee and wound on left lateral side


Based on photograph from photo-documentation and video-footage of the corpse, a piercing wound on right upper arm is noticed. Because, on photograph from photo-documentation, on outer side of right upper arm can be noticed outlines of the wound which is clearly seen on video-footage, it is possible to apply a line which shows approximate direction of perforating channel, Figure 71.

Based on direction of perforating channel of the wound on right upper arm of Kurbašić Damir and the wound on the chest, Figure 71, it is concluded that explosion was behind Kurbašić Damir's back a little to half-right. To such explosion site suits also the origin of wounds on Kurbašić Damir's back, Figure 67. 
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	Figure 70 Enlarged detail of wound on left lateral side of  Kurbašić Damir's body from Figure 69


However, wounds on the inner side of right knee could not have been caused from that direction, Figure 67, Figure 69 and Figure 72, wound on chest below left collar-bone, Figure 68 and wound on left hip, Figure 69 and Figure 70.

It is obvious that wounds on inner side of right knee, on chest below left collar-bone and on left lateral side were caused from front side, so from completely opposite direction in relation to wounds on right lateral side and on Kurbašić Damir's back.
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	Figure 71 Perforating channel of wound on Kurbašić Damir's right upper arm is labeled with a red line


Wound on inner side of right knee and on left lateral side could have been caused from the same direction, from left lateral side, while wound on chest cannot be linked to this direction and it is obvious that it was caused from frontal side. It means that Kurbašić Damir was hit by fragments from three directions.
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	Figure 72 Wound on Kurbašić Damir's inner knee side


Based on detailed analysis, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Kurbašić Damir was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion, but that he was killed by fragments which arrived from three different directions.

29. TADIĆ ILINKA, daughter of Živan, born in 1942, from Tuzla
Tadić Ilinka was located in front of Loto premises,
 Figure 73, which is 18m to 21m away from explosion site in front of “NIK” store.
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	Figure 73 Place where Tadić Ilinka was located


According to schematic display of injuries, Figure 74, Tadić Ilinka sustained 3 wounds in area of lower extremities and one wound in the jaw. 

It was experimentally proven that on “Kapija” square area where Borić Indira was located fragments formed by a 130mm projectile explosion in front of “NIK” store do not hit people in that zone.

Of course, an accidental hit in that area can occur, but it can never happen that one person is hit by multiple fragments. When taken into account that at this area there were more injured and fatally wounded people, then the possibility of Tadić Ilinka being killed by a 130mm projectile explosion in front of “NIK” store is completely excluded.

Photo-documentation does not show wounds on the left side of left leg, and does not show wounds injuries to back-knee pit of right leg, so these injuries cannot be commented on based on photo-documentation, but in Record of external examination multiple data about these injuries are given
 based on which a better insight in wounds character is possible.

Wound on left thigh is described as “... a defect of skin of outer part of lower thigh part and back inner (in area of which is a foreign metal object, most probably a fragment of shell, with diameter about 0.8 х 1cm), and injuries to front side of left knee.”

Wound on outer side of left leg on schematic display is drawn-in closer to groin area, and injury to back side which contains fragment can be seen on photograph of Tadić Ilinka's corpse, closer to knee,
 Figure 75.
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	Figure 74 Schematic display of Tadić Ilinka's injuries
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	Figure 75 Tadić Ilinka's body photograph, yellow circle marks injury beneath which the fragment is.


Based on this description it can be concluded that entry wound was above exit, which is confirmed by video-footage of the corpse- on which a place on clothes can be seen on Tadić Ilinka's left thigh through which fragment passed, Figure 76. On the same photograph a wound on the knee can be noticed, which looks like fragment flew from down towards up.
It confirms that injuries description in Records of examination of injuries is true, and that these two wounds were caused by fragment with downwards trajectory.
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	Figure 76 Tadić Ilinka’s body, yellow circle marks place where fragment hit


The same case is with the wound in back-knee pit of right leg, for which Record of examination of casualties states: “In back-knee pit right, a defect with diameter 4x3cm is found, which continues in-depth downwards, where a foreign metal object is found probably a fragment of the projectile.”

So this wound was also caused by fragment with downwards trajectory.

The fact that wounds were caused by fragments with downwards trajectory shows that Tadić Ilinka was killed by explosion which was at her hip's height, or a little above that height.

Based on all these analyses, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Tadić Ilinka was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion, but that she was killed by fragments which were formed at explosion which was at a certain height.

30. NUHANOVIĆ SELMA, daughter of Mirsad, born in 1977, from Tuzla
Nuhanović Selma was located at entrance to “Samoizbor” store,
 Figure 77, which is about 7m to 9m away from explosion site in front of “NIK” store. She was in Kurbegović Vanja’s
 and Nukić Hajrija’s, who was wounded, company.
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	Figure 77  Place where Nuhanović Selma was located


Nuhanović Selma sustained injuries at the are of both shins and defects in knee area, but they were not described in detail in schematic display nor are they visible on photographs from photo-documentation, Figure 78.
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	Figure 78 Photograph of Nuhanović Selma's body 


Large injuries in shins area, Figure 79, were caused by shockwave action which was formed by explosion in this person’s immediate proximity. It wa experimentally proven that these kind of injuries cannot be caused at a distance of 7m from 130mm projectile explosion site, based on which it is concluded that Nuhanović Selma was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion.
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	Figure 79 Devastated  Nuhanović Selma’s shins


Based on traces of shins destruction it is concluded that the explosion was behind Nuhanović Selma’s back.

Abovementioned defects on knees, which aren’t described on schematic display, are visible on Nuhanović Selma's corpse photograph, Figure 78 and Figure 80.
These defects are also visible on video-footage, Figure 81.
These defects could not have been caused by explosion behind Nuhanović Selma’s back, but they were caused by frontal hits, which means that Nuhanović Selma was hit from two directions.
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	Figure 80 Defects on Nuhanović Selma’s knees are marked by red arrows


On Nuhanović Selm's injuries schematic display, on middle of the chest one trace is marked as a laceration, but according to video-footage it looks more like a penetrating damage, which confirms previous conclusion about Nuhanović Selma being hurt also from front side, Figure 82.
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	Figure 81 Defects on  Nuhanović Selma’s knees are marked by circles
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	Figure 82 Defect on Nuhanović Selma’s chest


Based on all these analyses, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Nuhanović Selma was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion, but that she got killed by two explosions from two different directions.

31. MEHMEDOVIĆ EDIN, son of Sadil, born in 1975, from Tuzla
In available documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts at the moment of the explosion, but according to size and shape of wounds an impression is gotten that this person was killed by fragments which are very similar to fragments which hurt people on area between “NIK” building corner and “Samoizbor” store entrance,,
 Figure 83 and Figure 84.
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	Figure 83 Mehmedović Edin’s body


Schematic display of injuries does not register all injuries. Injury below right knee which is labeled by yellow circle on Figure 83, was not drawn-in on schematic display nor is mentioned in Record of conducted examination.
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	Figure 84 Schematic display of Mehmedović Edin’s body injuries


Bearing in mind the remark about injury below the knee and layout of injuries according to schematic display from Figure 84 and injuries on the head
, it is concluded that this person was killed by one explosion which was half-left behind his back. 

Based on size and shape of wounds, it is concluded that most fragments were large and of approximately the same dimensions, which is not a characteristic of fragments gained during artillery projectile bursting, based on which it is concluded that Mehmedović Edin was not killed by fragments of artillery projectile.

Based on all these analyses, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Mehmedović Edin was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion.
32. ŠIŠIĆ NIHAD, son of Ahmet, born in 1975, from Gračanica
In available documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts at the moment of the explosion. 

On Šišić Nihad’s schematic display of injuries, Figure 85, 14 fragment hits are marked, but on the photograph of the corpse, Figure 86, and video-footage several more hits can be noted, so it can be considered that Šišić Nihad sustained over twenty hits.
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	Figure 85 Schematic display of Šišić Nihad’s body injuries


According to experimental data such a high number of hits, at which the lowest hit is at about 25cm, and highest at about 150cm, could be possible only if this person was around “FIAT 125” car, which matches the distance of 9m to 10m away from 130mm projectile explosion site.

On video-footage of the corpse some other injuries around ankle of left and right leg can be noticed, Figure 87, this can also be noticed on photograph from photo-documentation, Figure 86. If these are injuries which were caused by explosion, then lowest hit is at about 10cm, so in such a case according to experimental results this person could have been significantly closer to the Center of Explosion and that at a distance of 3m to 5m,
 but in that case injuries would have been significantly larger. 
	[image: image101.jpg]




	Figure 86 Šišić Nihad’s body
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	Figure 87 Injuries to Šišić Nihad’s legs which were not registered anywhere


Based on schematic display of Šišić Nihad’s injuries, Figure 85, and photograph of the corpse, Figure 86, it is concluded that professor Karan’s conclusion, that this person was turned with his right side towards the Center of Explosion, is true.
 

If some details on Šišić Nihad's body are considered, then a question can be asked- if this person was hit from another direction. 
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	Figure 88 Injury to  Šišić Nihad’s left leg for which it cannot be claimed with certainty that it was caused from right lateral direction


Another injury gives base to doubt that Šišić Nihad was hit from two directions. On video-footage of the corpse, on chest is noticed, on the place of a large laceration, that there is a trace which suggests that Šišić Nihad was hit by a fragment which arrived from frontal direction, Figure 89.
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	Figure 89 Trace on Šišić Nihad’s chest which could have been caused only by a fragment hit from front side.


Based on traces on Šišić Nihad's body and available data, it cannot be excluded nor confirmed that wounds were caused by artillery projectile fragments, but based on traces on the body, with high level of certainty can be assumed that he was hit from two directions, and that is from the right lateral side and from the front side.

33. ČEKIĆ AMIR, son of Šaćir, born in 1974, from Gradačac
In available documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts at the moment of the explosion. 

Čekić Amir sustained numerous and very severe injuries of his back, head, legs, including amputation of left forearm and fingers of his left foot
, Figure 90 and Figure 91.
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	Figure 90 Čekić Amir’s body
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	Figure 91 Čekić Amir’s body


On Figure 91 it can be noticed that place where left forearm was amputated is located at the edge of defect on left back side (line “a”) which means that both defect on the back and amputation of forearm were caused by the same shockwave which was formed by an explosion which was behind his back. 

Direction of shockwave propagation, which caused defect on the back and amputation of forearm, matches the edge of defect on right side of back and right shoulder (line “b”), which means that this defect was also caused by the same explosion.
Injuries to right side of face confirm that these are defects caused by a shockwave after the explosion, Figure 92.
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	Figure 92 Defects on Čekić Amir's right side of face


These defects on Čekić Amir’s face macth the defects which were registered during explosions in some terrorist actions, Figure 93.

	[image: image108.jpg]




	Figure 93 Example of blast-injury to the face


This explosion was very close to Čekić Amir, which is concluded by presence of soot on his right thigh, Figure 90.
It is absolutely excluded that this was an artillery projectile explosion, because if an artillery projectile exploded in his proximity- there would have to be very high number of injuries from fragments on back part of legs and back, and in this case on the back there are only two shallow strip-like injuries, four completely round defects are visible on left leg, Figure 91, which is not a basic characteristic of injuries caused by artillery projectile fragments, while right side of his face holds two visible round defects, Figure 92.
Amputation of fingers on left foot could have been caused by the same explosion which caused abovementioned defects, under condition that toes were lifted and moved backwards, which is a situation when the person is moving. However, such assumption is hard to explain if taken into consideration that both shins hold larger defects, Figure 90, which could in no way be caused by an explosion behind his back. Because of that it can be claimed that there were two explosions in this person’s proximity.
On schematic display of injuries most injuries were noted, but not all. Some of them are significant for determining direction from which this person was hit, and because of that some characteristic injuries were specially marked on schematic display, Figure 94 and Figure 95.
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	Figure 94 Schematic display of Čekić Amir’s injuries, front and back side
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	Figure 95 Schematic display of Čekić Amir’s injuries, left and right lateral side


Injuries, on Figure 94 marked as: “Destruction by (illegible) fragment ø15mm“ and “Perforation with fracture of pubis (pubic bone)” are caused by fragment hit from frontal side, and not back side. 
Injuries, on Figure 95 marked as: “ø20mm” and “25x20 defect in-depth” could have been caused from both front or back side, and based on this documentation direction of fragment arrival cannot be determined with certainty.

Based on all these analyses, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Čekić Amir was not killed by 130mm projectile explosion, but that he was killed by an explosion which was behind his back in his immediate proximity and by explosion which was in front of him.
34. OKANOVIĆ INDIRA, daughter of Muhamed, born in 1980, from Tuzla
In available documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts at the moment of the explosion. 

According to photographs from photo-documentation, Figure 96 and Figure 97, there are a lot of traces of soot on this person’s body, which is not characteristic for 130mm projectile explosion and which was confirmed experimentally.
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	Figure 96 Okanović Indira’s body
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	Figure 97 Okanović Indira‘s upper body part


On Figure 96 and in schematic display of Okanović Indira's injuries, Figure 98, many large wounds which go up to height of about 1m can be noticed. Appearance of these injuries is not characteristic for injuries by fragments of artillery projectile, especially is atypical such high concentration of very similar injuries.
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	Figure 98 Schematic display of Okanović Indira‘s injuries


Injuries of Okanović Indira as well as characteristic soot on the body can be compared to injuries of following victims:

· 14. Kurtalić Vesna,

· 35. Bošnjaković Ilvana,

· 38. Bojkić Damir,

· 42. Bučuk Lejla,

· 51. Alagić Elvis,

· 52. Atiković Lejla
Based on available data and conducted analysis, it can be claimed with high level of certainty that Okanović Indira was not killed by 130mm projectile explosion.
35. BOŠNJAKOVIĆ ILVANA, daughter of Meho, born in 1977, from Tuzla
At the moment of Bošnjaković Ilvana’s demise, she was located at the corner of Dr. Mustafe Mujbegovića Street at “NIK” store,
 which is about 6m from explosion site in front of “Golf 1” car, Figure 99.
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	Figure 99 Place where Bošnjaković Ilvana was located


Bošnjaković Ilvana’s body was covered in massive layers of soot with very large injuries of legs and body, Figure 100 and Figure 101. It was experimentally proven that such traces do not remain on victim’s bodies at this distance after explosion of 130mm projectile next to “Golf 1”.
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	Figure 100 Bošnjaković Ilvana’s body
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	Figure 101 Injuries to Bošnjaković Ilvana’s legs


During explosion traumatic amputation of both legs above ankles has occured, Figure 101. Such a low blast-injury could in no way be caused by 130mm projectile explosion, which was proven experimentally.

On video-footage of Bošnjaković Ilvana's corpse, leg is visible with part of the boot, Figure 102.
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	Figure 102 Bošnjaković Ilvana’s leg


Appearance of leg from Figure 102 looks a lot like leg injury formed by part of foot stepping on anti-personnel mine PMA-3,
 so possibility that part of foot was above explosive cannot be excluded. In any case, Bošnjaković Ilvana was very close to the explosion and that is the reason why her body was covered from head to toes with big layers of soot.
Experimental results show that Bošnjaković Ilvana was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion, but from an explosion which was in her immediate proximity.
36. ALISPAHIĆ ADMIR, son of Alija, born in 1971, from Tuzla
Alispahić Admir was located in front of “NIK” store at the moment of his demise, at about 3m from Center of Explosion next to “Golf 1” car.
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	Figure 103 place where Alispahić Admir was located


Alispahić Admir's injuries, Figure 104, do not even closely match severity of injuries which a person, who would find himself at location where Alispahić Admir was at explosion of projectile next to “Golf 1” car, would sustain, which was experimentally confirmed multiple times.
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	Figure 104 Alispahić Admir's body


It was experimentally proven that Alispahić Admir's injuries were not caused by a 130mm projectile explosion.
37. ROSIĆ JASMINKO, son of Ahmet, born in 1962, from Tuzla
Rosić Jasminko was located in front of “Samoizbor” store entrance, about 9m away from explosion site in front of “Golf 1” car.
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	Figure 105 Place where Rosić Jasminko was located


Rosić Jasminko sustained numerous injuries from right lateral side and from front side, Figure 106. According to schematic display, there are 11 wounds on his body, but from the photograph of the corpse an impression is gained that there are more wounds, especially at the area of left knee and both shins.
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	Figure 106 Schematic isplay of Rosić Jasminko's injuries


Experiments have shown that persons who find themselves on the area where Rosić Jasminko was will either be not hit, or they will be hit by one or perhaps several fragments from 130mm projectile activated in front of “Golf 1” car.
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	Figure 107 Model which was on the area where Rosić Jasminko was located


There was one case where one model was hit by 17 fragments, but other models around it were hit by much less hits, which was not like that in real event on “Kapija” square, because almost all present people were hit by large number of fragments.
Mentioned case of model with 17 hits
 is very useful, because it shows the approximate sizes of fragments which arrive at area where Rosić Jasminko was located, Figure 107.

Largest fragment is of approximate dimensions 2cm x 1cm, which is drastic difference in relation to wounds on Rosić Jasminko's body, Figure 108.
Other models had very similar fragment hits by dimensions
- which confirms that wounds sustained by Rosić Jasminko were not caused by 130mm projectile.
On Rosić Jasminko's clothes higher levels of soot layers can be noticed.
 Considering that he was at about 9m away from explosion site, not even a theoretical possibility existed for his body to hold traces of soot, which was experimentally proven.
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	Figure 108  Rosić Jasminko's body
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	Figure 109 Destroyed shoulder and chest wounds of Rosić Jasminko


On Rosić Jasminko's chest two wounds of almost circular shape are noticed, Figure 109. These wounds are atypical for case of explosion of artillery projectile and such a type of wound was registered at multiple casualties.
 It can happen that during 130mm projectile explosion some smaller round wound occurs, but such numerous round wounds are not possible, which was also experimentally proven.
On Figure 109 it is noted that Rosić Jasminko's right shoulder is completely destroyed. Such destruction has occurred by a hit of some larger blunt object. Possibility that this happened due to a hit of some fragment of 130mm projectile is completely excluded, because this projectile does not have so large fragments
 in order to cause such a defect.
According to schematic display of Rosić Jasminko's injuries, Figure 110, it is obvious that Rosić Jasminko was hit from front side, but there is one wound on back side of left shoulder, Figure 110 right (marked by red circle), which could in no way be caused by arrival of fragment from front right side, which is confirmed by appearance of left shoulder on Figure 110. It means that Rosić Jasminko was hit from two different directions.
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	Figure 110 Schematic display of Rosić Jasminko’s injuries


Based on conducted analyses and experiments, with high level of certainty can be concluded that Rosić Jasminko was not hit by explosion of 130mm projectile and that he was hit from two different directions.
38. BOJKIĆ DAMIR, son of Alija, born in 1967, from Tuzla
In available documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts at the moment of the explosion. 

On Bojkić Damir’s corpse can be noted destruction of both legs up to half of shins,
 and layers of soot are noticed on lower extremities,
 Figure 111.
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	Figure 111 Lower part of Bojkić Damir’s body


Such low-positioned destruction of legs and presence of massive layers of soot point out that explosion was in this person’s proximity. If it was a 130mm projectile explosion at such a short distance, destruction of almost whole body would occur, with a very high number of projectile fragment wounds.

In this case on Bojkić Damir's body up to waist height, i.e. up to about 1m height, is noticeable presence of multiple larger wounds, Figure 112, which are not characteristic for a 130mm projectile explosion, and which are also noticed on some of the casualties:
· 14. Kurtalić Vesna,
· 34. Okanović Indira,

· 35. Bošnjaković Ilvana,

· 42. Bučuk Lejla,

· 51. Alagić Elvis,

· 52. Atiković Lejla.
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	Figure 112 Bojkić Damir’s body. Yellow circles mark circular wounds on his left lateral side


Wounds on his body which are of circular shape and of almost the same dimensions deserve special attention, which was also registered at body examination, Figure 112 (wounds are marked by yellow circles) and Figure 113, wounds are marked by red circles.
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	Figure 113 Schematic display of Bojkić Damir’s injuries


It is noticed that Bojkić Damir's body holds 6 wounds of circular shape with dimensions about 10mm. Such a number of circular-shaped wounds, and with that of approximately the same dimensions, can in no way be linked to explosion of 130mm projectile. Layout of these wounds on left lateral side is at almost a straight line and on relatively short distance, Figure 112 and Figure 113- right, which is also not characteristic of 130mm projectile fragments propagation. Such fragments layout is characteristic for pre-fragmented bodies of explosive devices, as is the case with some anti-personnel mines, hand grenades or for explosive devices with balls.
· 22. Kantor Franc,

· 39. Mujić Samir.
On Bojkić Damir’s back many smaller explosive injuries were registered, Figure 113, which are not visible on photographs, so they cannot be commented upon with certainty. What is undeniable is that these injuries could not have been caused by explosive device which caused destruction of shins and numerous injuries on front side of body. 
Based on conducted analyses and experiments, with high level of certainty can be concluded that Bojkić Damir was not wounded due to 130mm projectile explosion, but that he was killed by explosion which was in his immediate proximity. Possibility that he was hit from two directions cannot be excluded.
39. MUJIĆ SAMIR, son of Ejub, born in 1966, from Tuzla
According to witnesses’ statements Mujić Samir was located at two to three meters away from explosion site next to “Golf 1” car.
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	Figure 114 Place where Mujić Samir was located


Mujić Samir suffered traumatic amputations of part of right shin and part of left shin during the explosion, which is shown on schematic display of injuries, Figure 115. Direction of legs destruction points out to approximate explosion site. Connecting ends of remains of legs and elongating that direction to the ground gives approximate distance of Mujić Samir from Center of Explosion, Figure 115. That distance is labeled by line “a”. As Figure 115 shows, that distance equals approximately half the length of shin, i.e. about 40cm. Taking into account that this distance was determined according to a sketch, it can be considered that this distance was at the most 1m.
Experiments have shown that the person who would find himself at distance of one meter away from 130mm projectile explosion, which holds about 3.4kg of TNT explosive, would surely suffer large destruction of the whole body, which did not happen in this case. 

This fact shows without any doubt that 130mm projectile did not explode next to Mujić Samir. 
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	Figure 115 Schematic display of Mujić Samir's injuries
Line “a” marks approximate distance of Mujić Samir  from explosion site 


In this case attention is paid also on injuries on shins, Figure 116. Both left and right shin show injuries of approximately the same size of almost circular shape. Such injuries are atypical injuries for artillery projectile fragments, and other than that this many injuries of these characteristics are almost impossible. On right shin there are visible injuries (lacerations) of the same shape which are spread across straight line which is an almost impossible event in case of artillery projectile body bursting.
Such layout of fragments is characteristic for pre-fragmented bodies of explosive devices, as is the case with some anti-personnel mines, hand grenades or for explosive devices with balls.
· 22. Kantor Franc,
· 38. Bojkić Damir.
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	Figure 116 Mujić Samir's body


Based on conducted analyses and experiments, with high level of certainty can be concluded that Mujić Samir was not wounded due to 130mm projectile explosion, but that he was killed by an explosion which happened in his immediate vicinity at a distance of maximum 1m. 
40. RAHMANI RAIF, son of Alinafi, born in 1972, in Tuzla
According to witness’ statement was located in front of “Kapija” caffe, at about 28m away from explosion site in front of “NIK” store,
 Figure 117.
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	Figure 117 Place where Rahmani Raif was located


According to schematic display of injuries, this person sustained 7 injuries from left leg ankle up to right upper arm. In photo-documentation is noticed that his face holds one larger injury in area of right part of jaw,
 which in total makes 8 wounds from leg ankle up to head.
It was experimentally proven that it is impossible for a person who is located in front of “Kapija” caffe at about 28m away from explosion site in front of “NIK” store to sustain any injury.

It is possible that he is incidentally hit by one fragment, but even in that case it is impossible for that to be at ankle area. 
Considering that this person had eight wounds, based on experimental results it is concluded that he was not hit by fragments formed by explosion of 130mm projectile in front of “NIK” store.

Based on wounds layout and appearance of massive injury below right leg knee, with dimensions 14x7.5cm, Figure 119, it is concluded that Rahmani Raif was turned with his right side towards the Center of Explosion.
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	Figure 118 Schematic display of Rahmani Raif’s injuries
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	Figure 119 Injury below Rahmani Raif’s right knee


Injury to Rahmani Raif’s face unambiguously shows that Center of Explosion was at his proximity, because it is obvious that fragment hit his face at middle of face and then it hit upper jaw, Figure 120, which could have happened only if fragment’s angle of arrival was above 60°, which means that Center of Explosion was at immediate proximity. It is not needed to specially emphasize that a fragment which would arrive from a distance of 28m would have much lower angle of arrival in order to hit a person who is 184cm tall in the face.
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	Figure 120 Injury to Rahmani Raif’s face


Based on conducted analyses and experiments, it can be concluded with high level of certainty that Rahmani Raif did not die due to 130mm projectile explosion, but that he was killed by explosion which was in his immediate proximity on his right side. 
41. JAHIĆ ALMIR, son of Kasim, born in 1977, from Tuzla
Jahić Almir was sitting at a table in “Gulam” caffe garden in company of Čirak Samir
 and Ljajić Šejla,
 Figure 121. That place is about 18m away from explosion site in front of “NIK” store.
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	Figure 121 Place where Jahić Almir was located


According to schematic display of Jahić Almir’s injuries, he sustained one injury on inner side of right shin, which goes in-depth, and one injury in front side of neck, Figure 122. And according to injuries description on this body are injuries with different directions of injuries’ channels.

Based on Ljajić Šejla’s statement, who was in company with Jahić Almir and Čirak Samir, and who sat at a table facing away from “NIK” store, it is concluded that Jahić Almir could have been facing “NIK” store and from that position he could have been hit in neck, but he could not have been hit in inner part of right thigh. If he was sitting laterally towards “NIK” store he could get hit in right shin, but he could not get hit in the neck. Based on above stated, it stems that Jahić Almir was hit from two directions. 
Confirming this conclusion is character of Ljajić Šejla’s injury, who was facing away from “NIK” store, and was hit in both her left and right thigh. It is possible to assume that her position was such so she gets hit in one thigh, but in no way she could get hit in both thighs, which means that she was also hit either from two different directions or from one direction which is nearly perpendicular to direction towards “NIK” store, which points out that they were not hurt by 130mm projectile in front of “NIK” store.
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	Figure 122 Schematic display of Jahić Almir's injuries


Experimental results also show that a very low amount of fragments from a 130mm projectile which explodes in “NIK” store arrive at the area where these three casualties were.

Based on conducted analyses and experiments and based on witnesses’ statements, with high level of certainty can be concluded that Jahić Almir was not killed due to 130mm projectile explosion, but that he was killed by fragments from two different directions.
42.  BUČUK LEJLA, daughter of Hilmo, born in 1978, from Tuzla
In available documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts at the moment of the explosion. 

According to schematic display of injuries and photo-documentation it is concluded that this person facing with her front-lateral side towards Center of Explosion. 

On this person’s body layers of soot are noticed
 which indicates that she was in immediate proximity of the explosion.

On her lower extremities dominant are numerous larger explosive ones, Figure 123.

Based on direction of these injuries, it is estimated that Bučuk Lejla was about 2m away from explosion site, which excludes the possibility that she was killed by 130mm projectile explosion, because in that case significantly higher level of body destruction would occur, which was experimentally confirmed.
 Confirming that explosion was at a short distance, are multiple small injuries on left side of face, Figure 124, which could only be caused by fragments which were formed in immediate proximity, because if they were formed at higher distance their mutual distance would have been much larger, so there would be a lot less traces on face.
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	Figure 123 Bučuk Lejla's body


On Bučuk Lejla's body some circular wounds are noticed, which are marked with blue circles on Figure 123, and which are atypical for fragment wounds by artillery projectile.

Similar injuries can be noticed also on bodies of:

· 22. Kantor Franc,
· 37. Rosić Jasminko,
· 38. Bojkić Damir,
· 39. Mujić Samir,
· 43. Jogunčić Mujbašić Azur.
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	Figure 124 Injuries to left side of Bučuk Lejla’s face


Most of Bučuk Lejla's injuries, by appearance and size, remind on injuries of following victims
· 14. Kurtalić Vesna,
· 34. Okanović Indira,

· 35. Bošnjaković Ilvana,

· 38. Bojkić Damir, 

· 43. Jogunčić Mujbašić Azur,
· 51. Alagić Elvis,

· 52. Atiković Lejla.
Based on which it can be concluded that Bučuk Lejla was in proximity of some of these victims.
Based on conducted analyses and experiments and based on witnesses’ statements, it can be concluded with high level of certainty that Bučuk Lejla was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion.

43. JOGUNČIĆ MUJBAŠIĆ AZUR, son of Sejad, born in 1973, from Tuzla
 Jogunčić Mujbašić Azur was located next to “Zastava 101” car
, Figure 125.
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	Figure 121 Place where Jogunčić Mujbašić Azur was located


Based on direction of injuries on Jogunčić Mujbašić Azur’s left lateral side of body, Figure 122, it was estimated that he was between 2m and 3m away from Center of Explosion. Based on this fact, the possibility that this person was killed by 130mm projectile explosion in front of “NIK” store is completely excluded.
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	Figure 122 Jogunčić Mujbašić Azur's body


Massive injuries to left lateral side of Jogunčić Mujbašić Azur's body are by shape and size very similar to injuries on persons who were 2m to 3m away from his location.
Persons who had similar injuries are:
· 14. Kurtalić Vesna,

· 34. Okanović Indira,

· 35. Bošnjaković Ilvana,

· 38. Bojkić Damir, 

· 42. Bučuk Lejla,
· 51. Alagić Elvis,

· 52. Atiković Lejla.

Other than these injuries, on Jogunčić Mujbašić Azur's body can be noticed smaller wounds of circular shape which are atypical wounds for a case of artillery projectile action, Figure 123.
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	Figure 122 Wound of circular shape on Jogunčić Mujbašić Azur’s body


 Similar wound were on following persons:
· 22. Kantor Franc,
· 37. Rosić Jasminko,
· 38. Bojkić Damir,
· 39. Mujić Samir,
· 42. Bučuk Lejla.
Experiments have shown that, at a place where Jogunčić Mujbašić Azur was, there are no injuries which he had
 which is another obvious confirmation that Jogunčić Mujbašić Azur did not die by a 130mm projectile explosion.

Based on conducted analyses and experimental results, it can be claimed with level of ertainty that Jogunčić Mujbašić Azur did not die from a 130mm projectile explosion.

44. VANTIĆ AZUR, son of Bahrija, born in 1975, from Tuzla
Vantić Azur was located in front of “Samoizbor” store, on the area from entrance to popcorn machine
, Figure 123.
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	Figure 123 Place where Vantić Azur was located


According to schematic display of injuries and based on photo-documentation, it is noticed that Vantić Azur’s body holds injuries which were caused from front and from back side,
 Figure 124.
Injuries which were surely caused from back side are marked with red color on Figure 124. 

On figure 125, it is obvious that injuries marked with red lines could be caused only by action from back side.

Vantić Azur was, according to video-footage, in front of shopwindow, next to “Samoizbor” store entrance, and hits in his back correspond to breakage of the wooden-paneling in this store’s shopwindow.
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	Figure 124 Schematic display of Vantić Azur’s injuries, red color marks wounds caused by hits from the back
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	Figure 125 Vantić Azur’s body. Red lines mark wounds caused from behind


On front side of Vantić Azur's body, three wounds of approximately the same dimensions are noticed, Figure 126, which were caused by a hit of some object which surely is not a 130mm projectile fragment.
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	Figure 126 Injuries to Vantić Azur’s head and chest


Origin of such injuries can be different, which was experimentally confirmed.

Based on conducted analyses and experimental results, with high level of certainty it can be claimed that Vantić Azur did not die from 130mm projectile explosion and that he was hit from two different directions, from front and back side of body.

45. ABDUISMAIL SUZAN, daughter of Husein, born in 1980, from Tuzla
In available documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts at the moment of the explosion. 

Abduismail Suzan has suffered severe injuries with opening of body cavities, Figure 127 and Figure 128.
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	Figure 127 Upper part of Abduismail Suzan’s body
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	Figure 128 Abduismail Suzan’s body


Injuries visible on Abduismail Suzan’s body were not caused by 130mm artillery projectile explosion. Confirming this claim is that this person’s body holds a small number of smaller injuries, which would be very numerous if this person was close to 130mm projectile explosion.

Injuries from Figure 127 were caused by shockwave action after the explosion, which was at a very short distance from this person, which is confirmed by layers of soot on this person’s body. 

Based on these photographs it is hard to determine from which direction has stomach destruction from Figure 127 has occurred. Most likely the explosion was to her right side, but it cannot be claimed with absolute certainty.
Confirming this assumption is the fact that on video-footage of this person’s corpse there are visible smaller injuries, which could in no way be caused by action from the left side, Figure 129.
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	Figure 129 Injuries to right lateral side of Abduismail Suzan


Injuries to inner side of right shin can in no way be linked to these injuries, Figure 127.

These injuries on the right shin cannot be linked with stomach injury even in the case that stomach injury was caused by explosion from front or front-left side.

Stomach injury was obviously caused by an explosion which happened at a certain height, which is confirmed by layers of soot on Abduismail Suzan’s body.

Injury to inner shin side was caused by some other explosion.

Based on conducted analyses and number and character of injuries, it can be claimed with complete certainty that Abduismail Suzan was not killed by 130mm projectile explosion, but that she was killed by an explosion of some explosive devices. She was most probably killed by explosions of two explosive devices.

46. HASIČIĆ ŠEMSA, daughter of Safet, born in 1975, from Tuzla
In available documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts at the moment of the explosion. 

On schematic display of injuries were noted: perforating wound on left shoulder, wound on left upper arm with fracture of the bone, perforating the skull with destruction of brain on left side of skull, Figure 130.
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	Figure 130 Schematic display of Hasičić Šemsa’s injuries


According to schematic display and photo-documentation, abovementioned injuries were caused from two different directions. Perforating wound on left shoulder was caused by fragment hit from front right side, and skull injury and left upper arm injury were caused from back left side, Figure 130.
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	Figure 131 Hasičić Šemsa’s body with drawn-in directions from which characteristic injuries were caused


That these directions were correctly determined, in most obvious way is confirmed by photograph from photo-documentation, Figure 132.
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	Figure 132 Hasičić Šemsa’s upper body part


Based on conducted analyses, it can be claimed with high level of certainty that Hasičić Šemsa was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion, but that she was killed by fragments which arrived from two opposite directions.

47. SALAMOVIĆ SENAHID, son of Ibrahim, born in 1969, from Tuzla
In available documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts at the moment of the explosion. 

According to schematic display of injuries and photo-documentation, Salamović Senahid has injuries on front, back, and left lateral body side, Figure 133.
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	Figure 133 Schematic display of Salamović Senahid’s injuries
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	Figure 134 Wound on  Salamović Senahid’s lower back


Dominant is the injury in lower back area, Figure 134, the dimensions of which are 16cm x 7cm. According to appearance and position of the wound it is obvious that it is a tangential wound and that it was caused by a fragment hit from left side, i.e. that explosion was on his left side. In this direction do not match injuries to front part of left leg in knee area and injury to inner side of the same leg also in knee area.
Professor Karan does not exclude the possibility of that being a perforating wound.

Based on analysis of character and positions of wounds, possibility that it was a perforating wound is excluded, because in that case Center of Explosion would be more to front left side of Salamović Senahid's body, and wound on lower back wound start much closer to the hip and wound be significantly shorter, i.e. it could not stretch across almost whole back width- which was the real case.

For body position in relation to Center of Explosion which matches the wound on lower back- it is impossible that th same explosion causes wound on inner side of left leg in knee area, Figure 133- right. It means that this leg wound was caused by a hit from some other direction, even if this is a perforating wound, which would mean that it is linked by a perforating channel with the wound on leg front side around knee.
Based on conducted analyses, it can be claimed with level of certainty that Salamović Senahid was hit by fragments from two different directions.

48. MARKOVIĆ NENAD, son of Marko, born in 1976, from Tuzla
Marković Nenad was located at “Samoizbor” store corner,
 at 8m to 9m away from explosion site in front of “Golf 1” car, Figure 135.
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	Figure 135 Place where Marković Nenad was located


On Marković Nenad's body were registered injuries of right shin, injuries on stomach, injuries on left lateral body side, in area of left elbow, as well as injuries on area of inner side of left thigh and shin, Figure 136.
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	Figure 136 Schematic display of Marković Nenad’s injuries


Dominant injuries are two injuries on right shin, Figure 137.
Upper injury has clear trace which indicates at which angle fragment which caused this wound arrived, Figure 137.
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	Figure 137 Marković Nenad’s body


If taken into consideration that Marković Nenad was 8m away from explosion site in front of “Golf 1” car, and that start of the wound is at about 35cm from the ground- an angle of fragment trajectory in relation to the ground is gained and it equals 2.5°.

When on Figure 137 angle in relation to shin edge is determined, achieved angle is 72.6°, Figure 138, which gives angle of fragment trajectory in relation to horizon of 17.4°, which is seven times higher angle than an angle which fragment trajectory would have if it arrived from explosion site in front of “Golf 1” car. It is obvious confirmation that Marković Nenad was not hit by fragments of explosion in front of “Golf 1” car.
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	Figure 137 Determining direction of fragment which hit  Marković Nenad’s shin


Based on these injuries on right shin, it is obvious that Marković Nenad was hit from his left side, which does not match injuries to inner side of left shin and thigh, Figure 136, which were most likely caused by hits from some other direction.

Based on conducted analyses, it can be claimed with high level of certainty that Marković Nenad was not killed by 130mm projectile explosion in front of “Golf 1” car. There is a founded suspicion that Marković Nenad was hit from two directions.
49. HAKIĆ HAMDIJA, son of Ramiz, born in 1947, from Srebrenica
Hakić Hamdija was located at the corner of building at B&H Lottery premises,
 about 18m away from explosion site in front of “Golf 1” car, Figure 138.
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	Figure 138 Place where Hakić Hamdija was located


Hakić Hamdija had wounds on his chest, on left lateral side of body and on his back, Figure 139.
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	Figure 136 Schematic display of Hakić Hamdija's injuries


It was experimentally proven that at the place where Hakić Hamdija was, a 130mm projectile which explodes in front of “Golf 1” car does not cause any injuries to people who are present on that area.
 It means that on this area only some incidental fragment hit possible.
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	Figure 137 Determining location from which the fragment, which caused perforating wound on Hakić Hamdija’s back, arrived


Considering that Hakić Hamdija was hit by at least 6 fragments and that in his immediate proximity at least 5 other persons were injured, 3 of which were fatally wounded, then the possibility of Hakić Hamdija being hit by a 130mm projectile explosion in front of “Golf 1” car is completely excluded. Considering the number of fatally wounded and injured on that area, even the possibility of incidental hit on him is excluded.

Due to perforating wound on his back, at which the entry and exit wound are connected subdermally, with enough accuracy can be determined the place from which fragment which caused that wound arrived, Figure 137.
As Figure 137 shows, place from which fragment, which caused perforating wound to his back, arrived from distance “a” which matches height up to Hakić Hamdija’s hip. Hakić Hamdija’s height is 173cm, based on which it is estimated that the distance “a” equals 1m. Respecting the fact that sketch of the body is approximate and that wound position on sketch is approximate, it can be considered that fragment arrived from 1m up to 2m away from Hakić Hamdija’s right side.

On right side of Hakić Hamdija's body three wounds of almost identical dimensions and shape are noticed (diameter 20mm), Figure 138, which is atypical for an explosion of artillery projectile.
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	Figure 138 wounds on Hakić Hamdija’s right side of body


Based on conducted analyses and experimental results, it can be claimed with high level of certainty that Hakić Hamdija was not killed by 130mm projectile explosion in front of “Golf 1” car, but that he was killed from explosion which was at about 2m away from him.
50. STJEPANOVIĆ SAVO, son of Petar, born in, from Tuzla
Stjepanović Savo was located in front of “Kapija” caffe
 about 30m away from explosion site in front of “Golf 1” car, Figure 139.
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	Figure 139 Place where  Stjepanović Savo was located


Stjepanović Savo has a large defect of outer-back part of skull, as well as circular defect with dimensions 1.5x2cm.

Professor Karan does not exclude the possibility that these two injuries are linked, although it is not stated in Record of examination.

Stjepanović Savo was 188cm tall, so it can be considered that these injuries were at about 180cm.

It was experimentally proven that at a place where Stjepanović Savo was a 130mm projectile, which explodes in front of “Golf 1” car, does not cause any harm to people who are located at that area.
 It means that only some incidental fragment hit is possible at this area.
Taking into account that nearby Stjepanović Savo many more persons got hurt, at least 5 of which were fatally wounded, then possibility that Stjepanović Savo was hit due to 130mm projectile explosion in front of “Golf 1” car is completely excluded. Considering the number of fatally wounded and injured people on that area, even the possibility of an incidental hit is excluded.

Additional proof that Stjepanović Savo was not exposed to 130mm projectile action in front of “Golf 1” car is also the statement by Tokić Krunoslav who was next to Stjepanović Savo and who was wounded in his leg and who claims that due to explosion him and Stjepanović Savo were knocked-down on the ground,
 which is absolutely impossible in case of explosion of 130mm projectile in front of “Golf 1” car, and which was experimentally proven.

Based on conducted analyses and experimental results, it can be claimed with high level of certainty that Stjepanović Savo was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion in front of Golf 1” car.
51. ALAGIĆ ELVIS, son of Šemsudin, born in 1977, from Tuzla
In available documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts at the moment of the explosion. 

In this case, a schematic display of injuries was made, Figure 140. 
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	Figure 140 Schematic display of Alagić Elvis’s injuries


Destruction of left and right shin was noted, numerous small skin defects of left lateral body side, right groin area and scrotum area, as well as defects of back part of skull. 

On this schematic display one large injury is missing- on inner side of left thigh, Figure 141, and along right side of leg are not shown some injuries which are visible on photograph of Alagić Elvis's corpse, Figure 142. These injuries cannot be linked with injuries on back part of right leg, because position of wounds on back side of right leg is much more towards inside of the body and there are only 2, and on Figure 142 6 injuries are marked. One injury on right side of buttocks, Figure 140- left, is not counted, because it can barely be seen on Figure 142 and is not marked.
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	Figure 141 Injury on inner side of left thigh which is not shown on schematic display of Alagić Elvis’s injuries
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	Figure 142 Injuries on outer side of right leg which are not shown on schematic display of Alagić Elvis’s injuries


Based on appearance of shins injuries on Figure 141, it is obvious that this person was close to the explosion and that it was not a 130mm projectile explosion, because at that distance consequences to this person’s body would be much higher.

According to schematic display of injuries on shins it is obvious that the explosion was at 1m to 1.5m away and that explosion was on the left side, and person was moving.

However, origin of all the wounds on Alagić Elvis’s body does not match with this direction. Before all it goes for injury to inner side of left thigh, Figure 140, and 6 wounds on outer side of right leg, Figure 142. None of these wounds could have been caused by explosion from the left side, which means that this person was hit from two different directions.

Based on conducted analysis, it can be claimed with high level of certainty that Alagić Elvis was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion in front of “Golf 1” car, but that he was hit from two different directions.

52. ATIKOVIĆ LEJLA, daughter of Ibrahim, born in 1980, from Tuzla
According to Bošnjaković Envera’s statement
 she was in company of Bošnjaković Ilvana
 for who it was reliably determined that she was at corner of Dr. Mustafe Mujbegovića Street at corner of “NIK” store.
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	Figure 143 Assumed position where Atiković Lejla was located


On Atiković Lejla's body there is high amount of layers of soot on all body parts which were not covered by clothing, Figure 144, which suggests that she was in immediate proximity of the explosion site.
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	Figure 144 Atiković Lejla’s body with visible traces of soot


It was experimentally proven that such traces of soot do not remain after 130mm projectile explosion.

According to Atiković Lejla’s schematic display of injuries, she was facing the explosion site, Figure 145.
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	Figure 145 Schematic display of Atiković Lejla’s injuries
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	Figure 146 Determining the angle of fragment which hit  Atiković Lejla


However, when one carefully analyzes the layout of hits on Atiković Lejla's body, it is noticed that right lateral side holds no hits, but there are hits on the back, buttocks and back side of both legs, which is not logical if it is looked upon with one Center of Explosion.

On chest and shoulder of Atiković Lejla two hits can be noticed, which have almost identical direction and which have enough length in order to determine, by them, the distance from which fragments arrived, which made these two hits, Figure 146.
Atiković Lejla's height is 163cm, so it can be considered that her height up to shoulders is about 145cm. Considering that fragment arrived at a 30.8° angle, the result is that distance of explosion site from Atiković Lejla's body is 243cm.

Considering that exact position of Atiković Lejla is unknown, we shall consider the possibility that she was on the area between “NIK” building and “Golf 1” car. In that case, based on previous calculation, it is determined that distance of Atiković Lejla from explosion site would be about 2.5m. 

If Atiković Lejla was at a distance of 2.5m from “Golf 1” car, then effects of explosion on her body would be very similar to effects on persons who were in her immediate proximity. Person closest to position on which possibly Atiković Lejla was, is Alispahić Admir.

Alispahić Admir’s injuries are considerably different than Atiković Lejla's injuries, because he had more smaller wounds than her, all over his body.

On Alispahić Admir’s body there are traces of soot but they are less expressed, which points out that he too was close to the explosion, but Atiković Lejla was closer to the explosion.

It is excluded that Atiković Lejla was killed by a 130mm projectile explosion even if she was at assumed distance of 2.5m, because in that case her body would suffer significantly heavier consequences, which was experimentally confirmed.

Atiković Lejla’s injuries can be grouped with group of injuries of following victims:

· 14. Kurtalić Vesna,

· 34. Okanović Indira,

· 35. Bošnjaković Ilvana,

· 38. Bojkić Damir,

· 42. Bučuk Lejla,

· 51. Alagić Elvis.
Based on conducted analyses, it can be claimed with high level of certainty that Atiković Lejla was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion in front of “Golf 1” car. 

53. ŠIŠIĆ ARMIN, son of Fadil, born in 1975, from Gračanica
In available documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts at the moment of the explosion. 

Based on injuries which he sustained, Figure 147, it is obvious that he was not killed by 130mm projectile explosion, but that he was in almost immediate contact with some explosive device.
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	Figure 147 Šišić Armin’s body
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	Figure 148 Most probable position of  Šišić Armin in relation to explosive device


This body shows destruction of complete body and upper extremities, as well as destruction of most part of left leg, and left forearm and left hand are missing.

Such destruction of the body could happen only during very close contact of this person with the explosive. Most probable position of Šišić Armin at the moment of his demise is given on Figure 148.
Due to the way he died, this case deserves additional criminal investigation.

Based on conducted analysis, it can be claimed with complete certainty that Šišić Armin was killed by an explosive device at the moment when he was above it.
54. PONJAVIĆ RUSMIR, son of Faruk, born in 1974, from Tuzla
Ponjavić Rusmir was located in front of “Seljanka” store shopwindow in Dr. Mustafe Mujbegovića Street,
 Figure 149.
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	Figure 149 Position where Ponjavić Rusmir was located


By detailed analysis
 it was determined that Ponjavić Rusmir was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion and that he was hit from two different directions.
55. HIDANOVIĆ ALEM, son of Hasan, born in 1975, from Tuzla
Hidanović Alem was located at the corner of “Samoizbor” store,
 about 8m away from explosion site in front of “Golf 1” car, Figure 150.
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	Figure 150 Position where  Hidanović Alem was located


On Hidanović Alem's face layers of soot are visible, Figure 151. It was experimentally proven that at a place where he was located there are no traces of soot left after explosion of 130mm projectile in front of “Golf 1” car,
 which excludes the possibility that Hidanović Alem was killed by 130mm projectile explosion in front of “Golf 1” car.
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	Figure 151 Traces of soot on  Hidanović Alem's face


According to schematic display of Hidanović Alem's injuries and based on photo-documentation, it is obvious that he was facing the explosion site which caused injuries to front side of his body and on left and right lateral side.

On schematic display of injuries, Figure 152, three wounds are shown on right buttocks side, which are visible on photograph from photo-documentation on left side.
 Also visible on that photograph is the wound around right shoulder blade,
 Figure 153, which surely is not perforating, because there is no wound on front side of the chest, Figure 151.
These injuries to Hidanović Alem's back can in no way be linked with explosion which caused wounds on front and lateral sides of Hidanović Alem's body, which means that Hidanović Alem was hit from two different directions.
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	Figure 152 Schematic display of Hidanović Alem’s injuries
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	Figure 153 Hidanović Alem’s body with wound on his back which is not shown in schematic display of injuries


Based on conducted analyses and experimental results, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Hidanović Alem was not killed by 130mm projectile explosion and that he was hit from two different directions.
56. DEDIĆ ZADA, daughter of Hilmo, born in 1974, from Tuzla
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	Figure 154 Assumed place where Dedić Zada was


Dedić Zada was most probably in company with Vantić Azur
 in front of “Samoizbor” store at about 8m to 9m away from explosion site in front of “Golf 1” car, Figure 154.
Dedić Zada suffered massive damage to area of front and front-right part of body, back side of left thigh, and also in head area which is almost completely missing,
 Figure 155.
Nature of Dedić Zada's injuries is such that it absolutely excludes the possibility that she was killed by a 130mm artillery projectile at a distance of 8m or more, which was also experimentally proven.
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	Figure 155 Dedić Zada's body


These injuries could have been caused only by explosion which was in her immediate vicinity, from her front-left side at a height in her chest area, or she was in lying position next to or above the explosive device.
Based on conducted analysis and experimental research, it can be claimed with complete certainty that Dedić Zada was not killed by 130mm projectile explosion, but from an explosion which was in her immediate vicinity.
57. KURBEGOVIĆ VANJA, daughter of Haris, born in 1977, from Tuzla
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	Figure 156 Place where  Kurbegović Vanja  was located


Kurbegović Vanja was located at the entrance to “Samoizbor” store,
 Figure 156, which is about 7m to 9m away from explosion site in front of “NIK” store. She was in company with Nuhanović Selma
 and Nukić Hajrija who was wounded.
At Kurbegović Vanja massive injuries were located at back part of the head, in area of lateral side of right hip and in front side of left shin area,
 her body holds low number of fragment hits, Figure 157 and Figure 158.
It was experimentally proven that such injuries cannot be caused by 130mm projectile explosion at a distance where Kurbegović Vanja was.
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	Figure 157  Kurbegović Vanja‘s body


Injury to right lateral side was caused by a shockwave from an explosion which was in proximity of Kurbegović Vanja, which is concluded by massiveness of the injury. According to the photograph and shape of wound, Kurbegović Vanja was, by the looks of it, turned with her right side towards the explosion site. Such a close explosion probably caused rejection of this person’s body, at which probably head injuries due to hitting the ground occurred, most probably on the sidewalk curb.
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	Figure 158 Upper part of Kurbegović Vanja


Based on conducted analysis and experimental research, it can be claimed with complete certainty that Kurbegović Vanja was not killed by 130mm artillery projectile, but from an explosion which was in her immediate proximity.

58. STOJIČIĆ JELENA, daughter of Мarko, born in 1951, from Tuzla
Stojičić Jelena was located in front of "Gulam" cafe, closer to the "NIK" store, about 15m away from explosion site in front of the "Golf 1" car,
 Figure 159.
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	Figure 159 Place where  Stojičić Jelena was located


Stojičić Jelena sustained only one injury in the back of the head, Figure 160.

Appearance of Stojičić Jelena's wound leads to a conclusion that she was hit  tangentially by some massive fragment of explosive device.
 If we observe this injury in relation to explosion site in front of "Golf 1" car, then we come to a conclusion that this person had to have been turned with her right lateral side towards the explosion, i.e. towards "Golf 1" car.
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	Figure 160 Schematic display of  Stojičić Jelena’s injuries


According to schematic display of injuries, Figure 160, and according to photograph of Stojičić Jelena's body, Figure 161, her injury begins from the right shoulder and ends on the left side of the back of the head. According to the photograph of Stojičić Jelena's body, trace of the wound begins at about 5cm below  the right shoulder and ends on the left side of the neck, at least 3cm over the shoulder height.

If it is considered the distance between these two points is 30cm, we come to conclusion that the fragment hit Stojičić Jelena at an angle of 14.9° in relation to the horizon.

In order for a person to get hit at this angle, from explosion site next to “Golf 1” car, she should be 5.4m away.
 , this distance is at least three times shorter than  the distance where Stojičić Jelena was located, which shows that Stojičić Jelena was not hit by a fragment from explosion in front of  "Golf 1" car.
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	Figure 161 Direction of fragment which hit Stojičić Jelena's back of the head 


Based on conducted analysis, it is concluded with complete certainty that Stojičić Jelena was not hit by a fragment formed due to 130mm projectile explosion, but that she was hit by a fragment formed by explosion at about three times shorter distance from explosion site in front of “Golf 1” car.
59.  HRUSTANOVIĆ HASAN, son of Hamid, born in 1970, from Tuzla
Hrustanović Hasan was located at the boutique entrance
, Figure 162. He was accompanied by fatally wounded Mehanović Sulejman and Kurbašić Damir
.
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	Figure 162 Place where Hrustanović Hasan was located


According to schematic display of injuries, Figure 163, Hrustanović Hasan was facing the explosion site. Based on perforating wound on his neck  it is concluded that fragment direction was nearly perpendicular in relation to front side of Hrustanović Hasan`s body. 
One gets the impression that the injury on the right side of the face, Figure 164, was caused by the fragment`s arrival from the right side, but based on available documentation it cannot be claimed with certainty. However, one should bear in mind that he was accompanied by two persons who were hit from three directions.
The fact that Hrustanović Hasan's face holds layers of soot excludes the possibility that he was injured by the explosion of 130 mm projectile in front of "Golf 1" car.
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	Figure 163 Schematic display of Hrustanović Hasan’s injuries
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	Figure 164 Injry to Hrustanović Hasan's face
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	Figure 165 Layers of soot on  Hrustanović Hasan's face


Based on available documentation, it can be claimed with high level of certainty that Hrustanović Hasan was not killed by a 130mm projectile.
60. HADŽIĆ AGO, son of HAMDIJA, born in 1975, from Tuzla
Hadžić Ago was located at corner of "Samoizbor" store,
 about 8m away from explosion site in front of “Golf 1” car, Figure 166.
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	Figure 166 Place where Hadžić Ago was located


On schematic display of Hadžić Ago's injuries, Figure 167, 12 injuries are shown, which is more than expected number of hits according to experimental results.

Available photo-documentation does not give complete insight into injuries on lower extremities, so it is only possible to make conclusions based on schematic display.
According to schematic display most of the injuries were caused by explosion that took place at about 3m in front of Hadžić Ago. There is one larger wound on the back side of his right thigh and one injury on the upper area of buttocks, in which one fragment was found.
These two injuries to Hadžić Ago's back side of body can in no way bee linked with the explosion in front of him, which means that Hadžić Ago was hit from two directions.
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	Figure 167 Schematic display of Hadžić Ago's injuries


Based on conducted analysis and experimental results, it can be claimed with high level of certainty that Hadžić Ago was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion and that he was hit from two directions.
61. ČAUŠEVIĆ SELMA, daughter of Mirsad, born in 1977, from Tuzla
Čaušević Selma was located at the entrance to “Samoizbor” store,
 at 8m to 9m away from explosion site in front of “Golf 1” car, Figure 168.
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	Figure 168 Place where Čaušević Selma was located


Čaušević Selma had the following injuries:  destruction of right cheek with bone fracture, injuries on the front side of the chest and injuries on the back side of the chest with the opening of the thoracic cavity, Figure 169. 

Record of conducted examination and well as schematic display of injuries do not register numerous smaller injuries on outer lateral side of right shin, from foot to knee, Figure 170. These injuries were surely not caused by 130mm projectile explosion.
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	Figure 169 Schematic display of Čaušević Selma's injuries


Based on schematic display of injuries, numerous smaller injuries on the right leg, Figure 170, and photographs from photo-documentation, Figure 171, it is obvious that Čaušević Selma was hit from the right side or front-right side.
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	Figure 170 Čaušević Selma's body with injuries to the right leg which were not registered


If she was hit from the right side, than that explosion could also have inflicted injuries on her back, Figure 169- left (marked by red color), but in that case injuries on her left lateral side could not have been inflicted, Figure 169- right (marked by red color).

If she got hit from front-right side, than that explosion could have caused injuries on left lateral side, Figure 169- right (marked by red color), but in that case injuries to her back could not have been caused, Figure 169- right (marked by red color).

Based on above stated, no matter where explosion happened in front of Čaušević Selma, she was also affected by effects of another explosion from other direction.
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	Figure 171 Wound on Čaušević Selma’s chest


Based on available documentation and conducted analysis, it can be claimed with high level of certainty that Čaušević Selma was not killed by 130mm projectile explosion and that she was hit from two directions.
62. MUJANOVIĆ NEŠET, son of Omer, born in 1974, from Gradačac
Mujanović Nešet was located at about 7m away from explosion site in front of “Golf 1” car.
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	Figure 172 Place where  Mujanović Nešet was located


Mujanović Nešet’s body was almost completely blown-apart during explosion, Figure 173, which could not happen in no way by explosion of 130mm projectile at a distance of 7m. 
Case of Mujanović Nešet was processed in-detail in other report
 and it was noted that based on experimental data he was not killed by 130mm projectile explosion.
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	Figure 172  Mujanović Nešet’s body


Analysis of Mujanović Nešet's injuries gives the conclusion that he was killed by an explosive device which was in immediate proximity of his body. Most probable body position in relation to explosive device is very similar to Šišić Armin’s body position, Figure 148.

Based on available data, conducted analyses and experimental results, it is concluded with complete certainty that Mujanović Nešet was not killed 130mm projectile explosion, but that he was killed by an explosive device, which was in almost immediate contact with his body.
63. MILIĆ ADRIJANA, daughter of Mladen, born in 1978, from Tuzla
Milić Adrijana was located in front of "Samoizbor" store,
 at 7m to 8m away from explosion site in front of “Golf 1” car, Figure 173.
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	Figure 173 Place where  Milić Adrijana was located


This person has sustained massive injuries on front side of the body, located in neck area and right lateral side of body and also one massive injury in area of back, Figure 174.
The area of left knee and left shin give the impression of presence of massive layers of soot,
 Figure 175.
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	Figure 174 Schematic display of Milić Adrijana’s injuries
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	Figure 175 Milić Adrijana’s body with soot traces on left leg
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	Figure 176 Massive injuries on Milić Adrijana’s right side of stomach and neck


Based on schematic display of injuries, Figure 174, and photograph of  Milić Adrijana`s body, Figure 176, it is concluded that Center of Explosion which caused massive injuries to right lateral side, back and neck, was about 2m away. On the other hand, experimental results have shown that at the place where Milić Adrijana was located, such injuries cannot occur.

Based on schematic display of injuries, Figure 174, and photograph from photo documentation, Figure 175, it is concluded that the explosion that killed Milić Adrijana took place in front of her at front lateral side.
Based on available data, conducted analysis and experimental results, it is concluded with complete certainty that Milić Adrijana was not killed by 130mm projectile explosion, but that she got killed by an explosive device which was about 2m in front of her.
64. ČIRAK SAMIR, son of Džemal, born in 1977, from Tuzla
Čirak Samir was sitting at a table in “Gulam” caffe garden, accompanied by Jahić Almir
 and Ljaljić Šejla,
 Figure 177. That place is about 18m away from explosion site in front of “NIK” store.
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	Figure 177 Place where  Čirak Samir  was located


On Čirak Samir’s body one massive injury was noted on left lateral side of upper body, Figure 178, which was surgically processed,
 and was caused by hit of massive fragment of hit of secondary projectile.

Regardless of the fact that the wound on Čirak Samir’s body has been surgically processed, it is obvious that it is tangential wound. Otherwise, the object which hit this person would penetrate in ventricular cavity and quite surely would cause such injuries that there would be no need for any kind of surgical intervention, because hit person would die very quickly.
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	Figure 178 Injury to Čirak Samir’s body


Such a tangential wound is not possible from fragments formed by 130mm projectile explosion.

One must bear in mind that Čirak Samir was accompanied by Jahić Almir who was hit from two directions and that there are material traces that in “Gulam” caffe garden happened an explosion of some explosive device.

Based on available data, conducted analyses and experimental results, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Čirak Samir was not killed by a 130mm projectile explosion.
65. FATUŠIĆ MURIS, son of Mujo, born in 1980, from Tuzla.
In available documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts at the moment of the explosion.

Fatušić Muris passed away during operating procedure.

Based on schematic display of injuries, Figure 179, Fatušić Muris was turned with his right side towards explosion site. At that time his arm was amputated, but due to surgical processing it cannot be commented how this injury occurred.

It was noted that fracture of pelvis happened and fracture of neck of left thigh bone.
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	Figure 179 Schematic display of Fatušić Muris’s injuries


On photograph from photo-documentation, Figure 180, it is noticed that there is some injury at place where thigh bone was broken. It is not known if it is an injury from fall or hit by a fragment. If it is a fragment wound, it would mean that Fatušić Muris was hit from two directions.
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	Figure 180 Fatušić Muris’s left side of body


Based on available documentation it is not possible to reliably determine how Fatušić Muris died.
66. MURSELOVIĆ ELVIR, son of Ibrahim, born in 1972, from Tuzla
In available documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts at the moment of the explosion.

Murselović Elvir passed away on 25 May 1995 after surgical procedure.

According to schematic display of injuries, Figure 181, on Murselović Elvir's front side there are multiple wounds of almost circular section, which is not characteristic for artillery projectile action.
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	Figure 181 Schematic display of Murselović Elvir’s injuries


According to layout of injuries it is concluded that Murselović Elvir was turned with his front-left side towards the Center of Explosion.

On photograph from photo-documentation, Figure 182 and Figure 183, one gets an impression that front left shin holds many smaller injuries which are not noted on schematic display or in doctor’s reports.
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	Figure 182 Murselović Elvir’s body
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	Figure 183 Traces on Murselović Elvir’s left shin


If it is true that left shin, Figure 183, holds injuries, than this excludes the possibility of Murselović Elvir being killed by 130mm projectile explosion. 

Considering available documentation, it is not possible to claim with certainty that Murselović Elvir did not die by a 130mm projectile explosion, and there are even less facts to claim based on which could be claimed that he died due to 130mm projectile explosion.
67. ZAIMOVIĆ ADNAN, son of Husein, born in 1967, from Tuzla
In available documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts at the moment of the explosion.

Zaimović Adnan passed away on 27 May 1995 on intensive care ward of hospital in Tuzla.

According to schematic display of injuries, Figure 184, and photo-documentation, Figure 185, dominant injury on Zaimović Adnan’s body is massive injury to left lateral side in chest area.
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	Figure 184 Schematic display of Zaimović Adnan’s injuries
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	Figure 185 Photograph of  Zaimović Adnan’s corpse


Based on this wound it is obvious that the fragment which caused this defect arrived from a distance of 2m to 3m from Zaimović Adnan. Experiments have shown that this person’s injuries would be significantly more severe if a 130mm projectile exploded at that distance.

Based on conducted analysis and experimental results, it can be claimed with high level of certainty that Zaimović Adnan was not killed by 130mm projectile explosion.
68. HURIĆ ELVIRA, daughter of Lutva, born in 1978, from Tuzla
In available documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts at the moment of the explosion. 
Hurić Elvira passed away on 27 May 1995 at 23:50 on ward for intensive care and reanimation of Tuzlan hospital.

According to schematic display of injuries, Figure 186, and photo-documentation, Figure 187,  dominant injuries to Hurić Elvira’s body are in area of left side of stomach.
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	Figure 186 Schematic display of Hurić Elvira’s injuries


It is obvious that Hurić Elvira was turned with her front-right side towards the explosion site, but based on available data cause of these injuries cannot be determined.
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	Figure 187 Hurić Elvira’s body


Based on available documentation it is not possible to determine at which distance from explosion site was Hurić Elvira and from which explosive device she got killed.

69. SARAJLIĆ JASMINKA, daughter of Ibrahim, born in 1971, from Tuzla
In available documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts at the moment of the explosion.

Sarajlić Jasminka passed away on 29 May 1995 at 19:30 on ward for intensive care and reanimation of Tuzlan hospital.

According to schematic display of injuries, Figure 188, and photo-documentation, Figure 189, dominant injuries to Sarajlić Jasminka's body are in the area of right lateral side from knee to shoulder.
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	Figure 188 Schematic display of Sarajlić Jasminka's injuries
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	Figure 189 Sarajlić Jasminka's body


According to wounds layout, Sarajlić Jasminka was at about 10m away from Center of Explosion. Wounds on Sarajlić Jasminka's body are atypical for wounds caused by fragments of artillery projectile, especially atypical is the layout, almost at a straight line, based on which it is concluded that Sarajlić Jasminka most probably was not killed by artillery projectile explosion.
Based on available documentation and conducted analysis, Sarajlić Jasminka most probably didn't die by artillery projectile explosion.
70. MUJBAŠIĆ EDIN, son of Mehmedalija, born in 1973, from Tuzla
In available documentation there is no data about this person’s whereabouts at the moment of the explosion.

Mujbašić Edin passed away on 30 May 1995 at 06:40 on ward for intensive care and reanimation of Tuzlan hospital.

According to schematic display of injuries, Figure 190, and photo-documentation, Figure 191, dominant injury to Mujbašić Edin's body is massive injury to left lateral side from heel to back part of the head, which indicates that he was at 3m to 10m away from Center of Explosion. 
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	Figure 190 Schematic display of Mujbašić Edin’s injuries
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	Figure 191 Mujbašić Edin’s body


At such a short distance from 130mm projectile explosion site he would suffer significantly more severe injuries, based on which it is concluded that Mujbašić Edin was not killed by 130mm projectile explosion.                                                                                                  .

71. NINIĆ DIJANA, daughter of Dragan, born in 1975, from Tuzla
According to witness’ statement Ninić Dijana was sitting at a table in front of “Gulam” caffe,
 Figure 192.
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	Figure 192 Place where Ninić Dijana was located


Ninić Dijana passed away on 05 June 1995 at 10:20 on ward for intensive care and reanimation of Tuzlan hospital.
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	Figure 193 Schematic display of Ninić Dijana’s injuries


According to schematic display of injuries, Figure 193, and photo-documentation, Figure 194, dominant injuries on Ninić Dijana’s body are in area of front side of stomach and front upper part of front side of legs. Injuries sustained by Ninić Dijana are of almost circular shape and cannot be considered as characteristic injuries from artillery projectile. Such or similar injuries were noted on some other casualties.
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	Figure 194 Ninić Dijana’s body


On photograph from photo-documentation, Figure 195, changes of skin color of Ninić Dijana are noticed. These changes were nowhere described, and according to stated photograph it is concluded that changes occurred either from some thermic influence or it is the case of damage caused by shockwave. No matter the cause of these changes, they were surely formed during explosion, which is concluded by the fact that on the places where body was in direct contact with the chair (buttocks and lower back part below shoulders) such changes do not exist.
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	Figure 195 Changes to  Ninić Dijana’s skin on back


 Such changes could in no way be caused by 130mm projectile explosion in front of “Golf 1” car, and their presence indicates that they were caused by explosion in Ninić Dijana’s close proximity.

One should bear in mind that there are material evidence that in front of “Gulam” caffe there was an explosion.

Based on available documentation and conducted analyses, it is concluded with high level of certainty that Ninić Dijana was not killed by 130mm projectile explosion, but that she was killed by explosion in her immediate proximity.
4. OVERVIEW OF CASUALTIES BY NUMBER OF DIRECTIONS FROM WHICH THEY WERE HIT
4.1 Overview of casualties for which it was not possible to determine if they were killed by 130mm projectile explosion
	Number
	Number on casualties list
	Surname and name

	1
	65
	FATUŠIĆ MURIS

	2
	66
	MURSELOVIĆ EVIR

	3
	68
	HURIĆ ELVIRA


4.2 Overview of casualties which were hit from one direction
	Number
	Number on casualties list
	Surname and name

	1
	3
	HASANOVIĆ SENAD

	2
	5
	MARINOVIĆ PERA 

	3
	7
	SARAJLIĆ EDHEM

	4
	10
	ĐUŠIĆ SUZANA

	5
	13
	ĐUZEL AMIR

	6
	14
	KURTALIĆ VESNA 

	7
	16
	ČAJIĆ SANJA

	8
	18
	VUKOVIĆ MUSTAFA

	9
	21
	MEHINOVIĆ AMIRA

	10
	22
	KANTOR FRANC

	11
	24
	KALESIĆ SANDRO

	12
	29
	TADIĆ ILINKA

	13
	31
	MEHMEDOVIĆ EDIN

	14
	34
	OKANOVIĆ INDIRA

	15
	35
	BOŠNJAKOVIĆ ILVANA

	16
	36
	ALSIAPHIĆ ADMIR

	17
	39
	MUJIĆ SAMIR

	18
	40
	RAHMANI RAIF

	19
	42
	BUČUK LEJLA

	20
	43
	JOGUNČIĆ MUJBAŠIĆ AZUR

	21
	49
	HAKIĆ HAMDIJA

	22
	50
	STJEPANOVIĆ SAVO

	23
	52
	ATIKOVIĆ LEJLA

	24
	57
	KURBEGOVIĆ VANJA

	25
	58
	STOJIČIĆ JELENA

	26
	59
	HRUSTANOVIĆ HASAN

	27
	64
	ČIRAK SAMIR

	28
	67
	ZAIMOVIĆ ADNAN

	29
	70
	MUJBAŠIĆ EDIN

	30
	71
	NINIĆ DIJANA


4.3 Overview of casualties which were hit from one or maybe two directions
	Number
	Number on casualties list
	Surname and name

	1
	4
	RAMIĆ FAHRUDIN

	2
	38
	BOJKIĆ DAMIR


4.4 Overview of casualties which were hit from two directions
	Number
	Number on casualties list
	Surname and name

	1
	1
	ĐEDOVIĆ RAZIJA

	2
	2
	BRGULJAK ELMA

	3
	6
	MUSTAČEVIĆ ŠABAN

	4
	9
	BAKALOVIĆ ASMIR

	5
	11
	ĆERIMOVIĆ ALMASA

	6
	12
	ĐAPO SAMIR

	7
	15
	MEMIĆ EDISA 

	8
	17
	REKIĆ NEDIM

	9
	19
	HUJDUROVIĆ ADNAN

	10
	20
	AHMETAŠEVIĆ EDINA

	11
	23
	SLIJEPČEVIĆ ASIM

	12
	25
	HODŽIĆ NEDIM

	13
	26
	BORIĆ INDIRA

	14
	30
	NUHANOVIĆ SELMA

	15
	32
	ŠIŠIĆ NIHAD

	16
	33
	ČEKIĆ AMIR

	17
	37
	ROSIĆ JASMINKO

	18
	41
	JAHIĆ ALMIR

	19
	44
	VANTIĆ AZUR

	20
	45
	ABDUISMAIL SUZAN

	21
	46
	HASIČIĆ ŠEMSA

	22
	47
	SALAMOVIĆ SENAD

	23
	48
	MARKOVIĆ NENAD

	24
	51
	ALAGIĆ ELVIS

	25
	54
	PONJAVIĆ RUSMIR

	26
	55
	HIDANOVIĆ ALEM

	27
	60
	HADŽIĆ AGO

	28
	61
	ČAUŠEVIĆ SELMA


4.5 Overview of casualties which were hit from three directions
	Number
	Number on casualties list
	Surname and name

	1
	27
	MEHANOVIĆ SULEJMAN

	2
	28
	KURBAŠIĆ DAMIR


4.6 Overview of casualties which were hit from three or four directions
	Number
	Number on casualties list
	Surname and name

	1
	8
	BEGANOVIĆ ADNAN


4.7 Overview of persons who sustained severe destruction
	Number
	Number on casualties list
	Surname and name
	Position or description of wounds

	1
	53
	ŠIŠIĆ ARMIN
	Was above explosive device

	2
	56
	DEDIĆ ZADA
	Severe destruction of body

	3
	62
	MUJANOVIĆ NEŠET
	Was above explosive device

	4
	63
	MILIĆ ADRIJANA
	Severe destruction of body


5. SUMMARY FINDING
Detailed analysis, based on available documents and results of conducted experiments, has shown that at the incident on “Kapija” square in Tuzla on 25 May 1995 71 persons died. Artillery-ballistic analysis determined that:

1. 68 persons did not die by 130mm projectile explosion,

2. For 3 persons it is not possible to confirm or deny that they died from 130mm projectile explosion,

3. 30 persons were hit from one direction,

4. 2 persons were hit from one, and maybe two directions,

5. 28 persons were hit from two directions,

6. 2 persons were hit from three directions,

7. One person was hit from three, and maybe four directions,

8. 4 persons have sustained very severe destruction of body, two of which were above explosive device, and other two persons were very close to explosive device.
9. All casualties on “Kapija” square were killed by simultaneous explosion of several explosive devices placed across the square.
6. OPINION
Based on conducted artillery-ballistic analysis of casualties’ injuries, with very high level of certainty it was determined that on “Kapija” square in Tuzla on 25 May 1995 several explosive devices exploded, and not artillery projectile of 130mm caliber.
Ramić Fahrudin








Stojičić Jelena








Center of Explosion





Đuzel Amir





Marinović Pera





ĐAPO AMIR


MEHMEDOVIĆ EDIN





Đuzel Amir





KURTALIĆ VESNA





Surface


scratches





Soot





Destruction





Old


injury





Surface


scratches





Penetrating


damage and fractures





REKIĆ NEDIM





HUJDUROVIĆ ADNAN





BUČUK LEJLA


ČAJIĆ SANJA





Slijepčević Asim





KALESIĆ SANDRO





KALESIĆ SANDRO





KALESIĆ DINO





HODŽIĆ NEDIM





BORIĆ INDIRA





MEHANOVIĆ SULEJMAN





KURBAŠIĆ DAMIR





TADIĆ ILINKA





NUHANOVIĆ SELMA





Destruction by (illegible)


the fragment ø15mm





Perforation with fracture of pubis (pubic bone)





Traumatic amputation of


fingers on foot





Fragment





Traumatic amputation up to


below elbow (there is no forearm)





ø 20mm





25 x 20 defect in-depth





Destruction of soft tissue with fracture of thigh bone





BOŠNJAKOVIĆ ILVANA





ALISPAHIĆ ADMIR





ROSIĆ JASMINKO





MUJIĆ SAMIR 





RAHMANI RAIF





JAHIĆ ALMIR





JOGUNČIĆ MUJBAŠIĆ AZUR





VANTIĆ AZUR





Destruction of soft


tissue and bones





PERFORATION





Destruction of soft


tissue with complete fracture and crushing of bones 





MARKOVIĆ NENAD





HAKIĆ HAMDIJA





Connected subdermally,


perforation





STJEPANOVIĆ SAVO





ATIKOVIĆ LEJLA





PONJAVIĆ RUSMIR





HIDANOVIĆ ALEM





DEDIĆ ZADA





KURBEGOVIĆ VANJA





STOJIČIĆ JELENA





HRUSTANOVIĆ HASAN





MUJANOVIĆ NEŠET





MILIĆ ADRIJANA





ČIRAK SAMIR





NINIĆ DIJANA








� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, court-medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of delivered documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 27, first paragraph.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.1, page 141


� Figure is from video footage VTS_01_1 timeframe from 00:06:20 to 00:06:27


� Video: Autopsy of casualties, timeframe from 00:05:31 to 00:05:36


� Video: Autopsy of casualties, timeframe from 00:05:36 to 00:05:38





� Gavrić Ana, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 1/96 from 06 February 1999, page 2, second paragraph. Document: 41. Gavrić Ana


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 8.7, page 130.


� Mehmedović Samir, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 1/96 from 10 March 1997, page 2, second paragraph. Document: 68. Mehmedović Samir.


This witness states that he was in his friend Mostarčević Šaban’s company. It was probably a printing error, because Mostačević Šaban and Mehmedović Samir could have been friends since age difference is only one year. Mostarčević is mentioned in no other place.


� Technical Test Center Belgrade, Determining the Impact of Explosive Ordnance under the Approximate Conditions of the “Kapija” City Square in Tuzla on May 25th at 20.55 hours - Testing ground report- No. TOC-12-1385, from 23 September 2014, clause 2.4.1, photographs DSCN9942 and DSCN9947


� Higher Court in Tuzla, Record of external examination and identification of killed in massacre in Tuzla on 25 May 1995, Cri 30/95 from 22 June 1995, page 4, point 8.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 27, first paragraph


� Video: Autopsy of casualties, timeframe from 00:08:06 to 00:08:09


� Higher Court in Tuzla, Record of external examination and identification of casualties during massacre in Tuzla on 25 May 1995, Cri 30/95 from 22 June 1995, page 4, clause 9.


� Video: Autopsy of casualties, timeframe from 00:08:53 to 00:08:57


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 28, first paragraph.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 29, second paragraph.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 31, first paragraph.


� Hurić Edin, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 139/98 from 28 January 1999, page 2, first paragraph. Document: 111. Hurić Edin. 


This witness states that he was in company of his friend Mostarčević Šaban. It is probably a printing error, because Mostačević Šaban and Mehmedović Samir could have been friends since age difference between them is only one year. Mostarčević is not mentioned anywhere else. 


� Mehmedović Amel, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 1/96 from 8 February 1997, page 2, second paragraph. Document: 45. Mehmedović Amel. 


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 33, Figure lower right.


� Huremović Nadir, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 139/98 from 11 February 1999, page 2, first paragraph. Document: 191. Huremović Nadir. 


� Isić Vildana, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 139/98 from 3 February 1999, page 2, first paragraph. Document: 202. Isić Vildana. 


� Mile  Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.1, page 141


� Čajić Marica, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 139/98 from 18 January 1999, page 1, third paragraph. Document: 173. Čajić Marica. 


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 41, second paragraph.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 98.


� Brkić Almir, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 1/96 from 14 February 1997, page 2, second paragraph. Document: 50. Brkić Almir. 


� Malohodžić Nedim, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 1/96 from 19 March 1997, page 2, second paragraph. Document: 91. Malohodžić Nedim. 


� Ikinić Admir, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 1/96 from 18 March 1997, page 2, second paragraph. Document: 87. Ikinić Admir. 


� Bučuk Lejla is listed in case records under number 42, and Čajić Sanja as number 16.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 51.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 51. second paragraph.


� Đapo Samir, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 1/96 from 17 March 1997, page 2, second paragraph. Document: 83. Đapo Samir. 


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 56, first paragraph.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 56, second paragraph.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 55, first paragraph.


� Kalesić Dino, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 139/98 from 18 January 1998, page 1, second paragraph. Document: 171. Kalesić Dino. 


� Kalesić Dino, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 139/98 from 18 January 1998, page 1, second paragraph. Document: 171. Kalesić Dino. 


� Kalesić Dino, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 139/98 from 18 January 1998, page 1, second paragraph. Document: 171. Kalesić Dino. 


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 57, first paragraph.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 8.3, page 120.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 59, third paragraph and page  162, last paragraph.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.5, page 150 and clause 9.1.6, page 154. 


� Gavrić Ana, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 1/96 from 06 February 1997, page 2, second paragraph. Document: 41. Gavrić Ana. 


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 8.7, page 130 and clause 9.1.12, page 172. 


� Smajić Enver, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 139/98 from 27 January 1999, page 2, Document: 102. Smajić Enver. 


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.10, page 163.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 62.


� Smajić Enver, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 139/98 from 27 January 1999, page 2, Document: 102. Smajić Enver. 


� Mehanović Sulejman is listed as victim with number 27, and Hrustanović Hasan as victim number 59.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 65.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 66.


� Gavrić Ana, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 1/96 from 06 February 1997, page 2, second paragraph. Document: 41. Gavrić Ana. 


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.12, page 172. 


� Record of external examination and identification of casualties during massacre in Tuzla on 25 May 1995, Higher Court in Tuzla, No. Cri. 30/95 from 22 June 1995, page 8. 


� Record of external examination and identification of casualties during massacre in Tuzla on 25 May 1995, Higher Court in Tuzla, No. Cri. 30/95 from 22 June 1995, page 8, last paragraph.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 68, first paragraph.


� Record of external examination and identification of casualties during massacre in Tuzla on 25 May 1995, Higher Court in Tuzla, No. Cri. 30/95 from 22 June 1995, page 8, last paragraph.


� Nukić Hajrija, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 1/96 from 10 March 1997, page 2, second paragraph. Document: 71. Nukić Hajrija. 


� Kurbegović Vanja is listed in list of casualties as number 57.


� In that area were killed: 14. Kurtalić Vesna, 25. Hodžić Nedim, 34. Okanović Indira, 35. Bošnjaković Ilvana, 42. Bučuk Lejla


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 68, first paragraph.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.11, page 169, Table 17. 


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.2, page 146, Table 10. 


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 68, first paragraph.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 76.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 7.2.7, page 98. 


� Petrušić Jugoslav and Đuković Branka, Analzsis of casualties, page 3, Document: ANALYSIS OF CASUALTIES


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.7, page 155. 


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 7.2.6, page 95. 


�  Anti-personnel mine PMA-3 contains 35g of pressed TNT


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.1, page  141. 


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.6, page 154. 


� Technical Test Center Belgrade, Determining the Impact of Explosive Ordnance under the Approximate Conditions of the “Kapija” City Square in Tuzla on May 25th at 20.55 hours - Testing ground report-  No. TOC-12-1385, from 23 September 2014, clause


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.6, page 154, Table 13. 


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 86.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 7.2.7, page 98. 


� 15. Memić Edisa, 22. Kantor Franc, 39. Mujić Samir,42. Bučuk Lejla, 43. Jogunćić Mujbašić Azur, 49, Hakić Hamdija, 54. Ponjavić Rusimir, 60. Hodžić Ago, 69. Sarajlić Jamsinka, 70. Mujabšić Edin, 71. Ninić Dijana.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 7.1, page 55, Figure 56, page 75. 


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 88, first paragraph.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 89, first paragraph.


� Isić Ahmed, Record of witness hearing, No.: КТ-RZ 169/07 from 14 December 2007, page 2, second paragraph. Document: 119. Isić Ahmed


“... I hugged Samir and we were near the place where several moments later projectile fell. I think we were 2 to 3 meters away from that place...”


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1, page 141. 


� Jahijagić Almir, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 31/95, page 2, third paragraph. Document: 20. Jahijagić Almir. 


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 94, seconds and third paragraph.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1, page 141. 


� Čirak Samir was fatally wounded at this occasion, and is listed as number 64 in list of casualties. 


� Ljajić Šejla, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 132 from 09 June 1997, page 2, second paragraph. Document: 98. Ljajić Šejla. 


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 95, last paragraph.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.9, page 160. 


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 98, last paragraph.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 98, paragraph before last.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.1, page 141, clause 9.1.2, page 144. 


� Iknić Admir, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 1/96 from 18 March 1997, page 2, second paragraph. Document: 87. Iknić Admir. 





� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.1, page 141, clause 9.1.5, page 150. 


� Petrušić Jugoslav and Đuković Branka, analysis of casualties, page 9, Document: ANALYSIS OF CASUALTIES


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 101, paragraph before last.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 8.5.2, page 124.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 7.2.8, page 99.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 107, third paragraph.


� Ikinić Admir, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 1/96 from 18 March 1997, page 2, second paragraph. Document: 87. Ikinić Admir. 


� Gavrić Ana, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 1/96 from 06 February 1999, page 2, second paragraph. Document: 41. Gavrić Ana 


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 8.7, page 130.


� Tokić Krunoslav, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 139/98 from 28 January 1999, page 2, first paragraph. Document: 109. Tokić Krunoslav. 


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 113, first paragraph.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 114, first paragraph.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.13, page 173.


� Tokić Krunoslav, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 139/98 from 28 January 1999, page 2, first paragraph. Document: 109. Tokić Krunoslav. 


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 8.7.1.1, page 133 and clause 9.1.13, page 173.


� Bošnjaković Envera, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 139/98 from 18 January 1999, page 2, third paragraph. Document: 172. Bošnjaković Envera. 


� Bošnjaković Ilvana is number 35 in the list of casualties.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 7.27, page 98.


� Alispahić Admir is listed as number 36 in list of casualties.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 84.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 8.1.9, page 114, clause 9.1.7, page 155.


� Petrušić Jugoslav and Đuković Branka, analysis of casualties, page 10, Document: ANALYSIS OF CASUALTIES.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.8, page 158.


� Iknić Admir, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 1/96 from 18 March 1997, page 2, second paragraph. Document: 87. Ikinić Admir. 


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 7.2.7, page 98.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 124, second paragraph.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 124, second paragraph.


� Iknić Admir, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 1/96 from 18 March 1997, page 2, second paragraph. Document: 87. Ikinić Admir. 


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 126, third paragraph.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.5, page 151 and clause 9.1.6, page 154.


� Nukić Hajrija, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 1/96 from 10 March 1997, page 2, second paragraph. Document: 71. Nukić Hajrija. 


� Nuhanović Selma is listed as number 30 on the list of casualties.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 128, third paragraph.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.5, page 151 and clause 7.2.6, page 95.


� Petrušić Jugoslav and Đuković Branka, analysis of casualties, Figure 11. Document: ANALYSIS OF CASUALTIES


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 131, first paragraph.


� Stojičić Jelena’s height is 171cm, so it was taken that shoulders are 150cm high, i.e. that lowest point at which fragment hit shoulder is 145cm.


� Smajić Enver, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 139/98 from 27 January 1999, page 2, Document: 102. Smajić Enver. 


� Mehanović Sulejman is listed as victim number 27, and Kurbašić Damir as victim number 28.


� Iknić Admir, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 1/96 from 18 March 1997, page 2, second paragraph. Document: 87. Ikinić Admir. 


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.5, page 151 and clause 9.1.5, page 150.


� Petrušić Jugoslav and Đuković Branka, analzsis of casualties, page 11, Document: ANALYSIS OF CASUALTIES.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.4, page 147.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.4, page 147.


� Petrušić Jugoslav and Đuković Branka, analzsis of casualties, page 13, Document: ANALYSIS OF CASUALTIES.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 142, second paragraph.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.6, page 154.


� Jahić Almir was fatally wounded at this time, and is listed as number 41 in list of casualties. 


� Ljajić Šejla, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 132 from 09 June 1997, page 2, second paragraph. Document: 98. Ljajić Šejla. 


� Čirak Samir passed away on 26 May 1995 at 02:10.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 145, first paragraph.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 8.4, page 121.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 147, first paragraph.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 148, first paragraph and page 149, third paragraph.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 150, first paragraph.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 9.1.2, page 144.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 152, second paragraph.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 154, second paragraph.


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 150, first paragraph.


� Isić Vildana, Record of witness hearing, No.: Cri 139/98 from 03 February 1999, page 2, first paragraph. Document: 202. Isić Vildana. 


� Prof. Dr. Sci. Med. Željko P. Karan, Court medicine specialist, Court-medicine analysis of submitted documentation “Tuzlan Kapija”- finding and opinion, Banja Luka 2014, page 159, first paragraph .


� 15. Memić Edisa, 22. Kantor Franc, 37. Rosić Jasminko, 39. Mujić Samir, 42. Bučuk Lejla, 43. Jogunčić Mujbašić Azur, 49. Hakić Hamdija, 54. Ponjavić Rusmir, 60. Hodžić Ago, 69. Sarajlić Jasminka, 70. Mujbašić Edin.


� Mile Poparić, PROFESSIONAL EXPERTISE OF CIRCUMSTANCES AND EARLIER DETERMINED FACTS ABOUT THE CASE OF EXPLOSION ON “KAPIJA” SQUARE IN TUZLA ON 25 MAY 1995, FINDING AND OPINION, clause 8.4, page 121.





127

